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HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

02  annual repn'-t

HeldelbergCement Bangladesh Limited i= one of the [argest producers of quality cement in Bangladesh.
HeldelbergCement Bangladesh Lid. is a member of HeidelbergCement Group, Germany. The group has 136
vears of experience in producing cement and is operating in more than 40 countries. It has around 53,000
employees and an annual turnover of Euro 11.1 billion. In Bangladesh it represents two reputed brands
"Ruby Cement" and "Scan Cement”.

In 1598 HeidelbergCement Group established its
presence in Bangladesh by setting up a floating terminal
with onboard packing facilities in the port of Chittagong
and by distributing the cement to the key markets of
Dhaka and Chittagong. In 1999 the Group further
strengthened its position in Bangladesh and built a
Greenfield manufacturing plant near Dhaka namely
“ScanCement International Limited” with an installed
capacity of 0.750 million tones per year. in 2000
HeidelbergCement Group bought a minority position at Chittagong based company namely "Chittagong
Cement Clinker Grinding Co. Limited (CCCGCLY" quickly followed by the acquisition of a controlling stake.
The plant in Chittagong has an installed capacity of 0.7 million tones per year.

In 2003, the btwo companies were amalgamated and the company's name was changed to
HeldelbergCement Bangladesh Limited. Since 2004, the Company has diversified its product range by
introducing Portland Composite Cement [PCC) into the market. The Company also produces other types of
cement namely Ordinary Portland Cement [OPC).

The Company further increased the capacity of its Kanchpur plant by setting up another grinding unit of 0.45
million tones per year that was commissioned in 2008. The company has also increased the capacity of its
Chittagong plant by installing another grinding unit of 0.750 million tones per year which is on operation
fram the end of 2011. Both the plants are certified according to the globally applicable environmental
management systemn standards-14001.




Flgurns in BDT

NPAT (Net Profit After Tax)
.*urpm 72.22%
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HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

Building worldwide growth by building a better world

Business Culture:

Building on local responsibility for international success

Employee Policy:
Building our business on the knowledge of our people

Market Strategy:

Building our growth on a solid base of earnings

Customer Philosophy:

Building customer satisfaction, because their success is our success

Quality Standard:
Building on quality products to build our reputation

Commitment to Environmental Protection:
Building on environmental care also makes economic sense

Commitment to Innovation:
Building on new technologies determines our future success




The company inaugurated another grinding unit
of 0.750 million tones per year in its Chittagong
plant which is in operation.

The Company increased the capacity of its
Kanchpur plant by setting up another grinding
unit of 0.45 million tones per year that was
commissioned.

Company has diversified its product range by
introducing Portland Composite Cement [PCC)
into the market.

SIL & CCCGCL were amalgamated and the
company’s name was changed to
HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited.

Acquisiion of “Chittagong Cement Clinker
Grinding Co. Limited (CCCGCL)" was completed.

A Greenfield manufacturing plant was built near
Dhaka namely “ScanCement International
Limited (SIL)" with an installed capacity of 0.750
million tones per year.

HeidelbergCement Group established [ts
presence in Bangladesh by setting up a floating
terminal with onboard packing facilities in the
port of Chittagong Contents.
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HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

MNOTICE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited
Registered Office: South Halishahar, Chittagong j _
Corporate Office: Symphony, {7th Floor), Plot No.9, Road No.142; South Avenue, Gulshan ~1, Dhaka -1212

NOTICE OF 24th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given to all the Shareholders of HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited that the 24th
Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company will be held on 9th May, 2013 at 10.30 A.M. at Factory
Premises, at Tatki, Jatramora, Tarabow, Rupgonj, Narayangonj to transact the following business:

AGANDA

01. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended December
31, 2012 together with the Reports of the Auditors and the Directors thereon.

02. To declare and approve the Dividend.,

03, To elect Directors.,

04, To appoint Auditors for the year 2013 and to fix their remuneration.

By Order of the Boarnd
-~

{Mnhﬂmnﬁ& Maostafizur Rahman)
Dated: 18 April, 2013 Company Secretary

NOTES:

. The ‘Record Date’ in lieu of Book Closure on 24 April 2013, The Shareholders whose names would
appear in the Register of Members of the Company or in the Depository on the’Record Datewill be
eligible to attend the 24th Annual General Meeting and receive Dividends.

. A Shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a Proxy in
his stead, Such proxy must be a Shareholder of the Company. The Proxy Form must be affived with
requisite revenue stamp and must be deposited at the Corporate Office of the Company at least 48
hours before the time fixed for the Meeting.

. The Shareholders are requested to notify change of address, if any, to the Company in writing at the
Corporate Office,
L] Admission to the meeting venue will be strictly on production of the attendance slip sent with

notice.
wﬁwmm%ﬂ.rﬁmmmwmwm
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HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

INFORMATION
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Chalrman independent Director A KM IBHANGIR KHAM
ABDUL AWAL MINTOO DEFALOUE FRANCISCD
DANIEL LAVALLE NELSON BORCH
Managing Director Diractors JASHIM UDDIN CHOWDHURY, FCA
JOSE MARCELING LGARTE | DR. ALRERT SCHEUER
~ oomDcowmTIEE =79

it o Y e e
ABDUL AWAL MINTOD [CHAIRMAN)

AUDIT COMMITTEE JASHIM UDDIN CHOWDHURY, FCA
NELSON BOWCH MOHAMMAD MOSTAFIZUR RAHMAN
[SECRETARY)
MANAGEMENT JOSE MARCELING UGARTE MUSTAGUE AHMED
COMMITTEE SYED ABL ABED SAHER K. C. PIPLAI
ASHRAFUL AMIN BADAL BUDI NUGRAHA
MOHARMBMAD MOSTAFIZUR JASHIM UDDMN CHOWDHURY, FCA
RAHMAN
PERVIN SLLTANA
SAFETY HEALTH AND MLUISTACUE AHMED MOHAMMAD ALAMGIR
ENVIRONMENT K. C. FIFLAJ DEBASISH KAG
COMMITTEE

BLUID MUGRAHA

HEAD OF INTERMAL MAMLUNUL HOOUE CHOWDHURY
ALDIT
COMPANY SECRETARY MOHARBBMAD MOSTAFIZUR RAHNMAMN
REGISTERED DFFICE South Halishahar, Chitagong
CORPORATE OFFICE Corporate Dffice :
Symphony, (6°&7" Floor], Plot No.9, Road No.142, South Avenue,
W Y -l aulshan -1 DRMGASIRAT. 8 s e B e e
PLANTS Dihaka Plant: Tatki, latramara, Chittagong Plant: Sowth Halishathar,
Tarabo, P.5 -Rupgoni, Chittagong-4204
Dist. — Marayangonj
AUDITORS Statutory Auditors BOBL Bhaban [Lewel-13)12 Earwan
M5, ACNARIN Bazar Commercial Area
el | Chartered Accountants | Dhaka-1215, Bangladesh
BAMNKERS Standard Chartered Bank Dutch-Bangta Bank Ltd
Citibank N.A, Lietara Bank Ltd
HSBIC One Bank Limited
Dhaka Bank Ltd
WERSITE warw heidelbergoementbd, com
INVESTORS RELATIONS Telephone +88-02-E81 1591 Email
Fax - +88-02-8812584 Infei@heldelbargcementbd.com
STOCK ENCHANGE Listing year - 1585 Listing year - 1589
LISTING Stock name = HEIDELBCEM Stock name = HEIDELBCEM
Compamy No.21614 Compamy No.21614

Through Cts the trading of HeldalbergCement Bangladesh Limited

shares have started from 18th Juby 2004
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E OF THE DIRECTORS

Daniel Lavalle
Chairman

Belgian citizen, borm on August 2, 1950. Chairman of the Company.
Concurrently, he is a Chief Executive Officer of heidelbergcement group for
Indonesia - Brunei — Malaysia. Previously, he was Chief Executive Officer of
Cbr cement, Belgium. He holds a Master's Degree in Mining from
Polytechnical faculty of Mons, Belgium.

Jose Marcelino Ugarte
Managing Director

American Citizen, born on May 05, 1971 in Philippines. Managing Director of
the Company since August 2011, Previously, he worked with CEMEX, a global
leader in building materials for about 10 years in various capacities. He
worked the Managing Director of CEMEX Malaysia, CEMEX Indonesia and
CEMEX Bangladesh. He holds a Bachelor of Science, Business Administration
in 1996 from University of San Francisco, San Francisco, California, USA. He
started his career in 1997 with Cramdells Development Corporation in Cebu,
Philippines.

DR. Albert Scheuer
Director

German Citizen, born on November 4, 1957, Director of the Company. He is
concurrently a member of the Managing Board of HeidelbergCement Group,
in charge of Asia-Ocenia and worldwide coordination of Heidelberg
Technology Centre. He received his Bachelor degree in Mechanical
Engineering in 1982 and his Doctorate in Mechanical Engineering in 1887
from the Technical University of Clausthal, Germany.

Melsan Borch
Director

Canadian Citizen, born on October 26, 1962. Director of the Company.
Concurrently, he is a Director of Indocement, HeidelbergCement Group.
Previously, he worked with the CBR Group in Various capacities, Also, he was
formerly Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director of Terra Geotechnics SDN
BHD, Malaysia. He holds a degree in Civil Engineering from the University of
Britich Columbia, Canada.



E DIRECTORS

Juan Defalque Francisco
Director

Belgian Citizen, born on 23 August 1963 in Granada (Spain). Director of the
Company. Concurrently, he has been working as the Head of HTC SEA since
2006 being posted in Indonesia. He is responsible for major CAPEX projects
and ocperational support for Indocement, HeidelbergCement Group.
Previously, he worked with the CIMBENIM 5.A as the Managing Director being
posted in Benin, West Africa. Prior to that he worked in Various capacities
including Technical Service Director for CER-Belgium. He is a Mining Civil
Engineer  completed his education from Catholic University of
Louvain-la-Neuve, Belgium.

Abdul Awal Mintoo
Independent Director

Bangladeshi Citizen. He was born on the 22nd February 1349, He has a high
academic career and commendable experience in the field of trade, Industry,
Shipping, Banking and Insurance. He was elected President of The Federation
of Bangladesh Chambers of Commerce & Industry [FBCCI) two times. He
holds his Bachelor of Science in Transportation Science in 1972 and Master of
Science in Transportation Management in 1977 from State University of New
York. He also completed his Master in Agricultural Economics from University
of London in 2012. He imvwolved himself with various other business and
industrial establishments,

Jashim Uddin Chowdhury
Director

Bangladeshi Citizen, born on 31 December 1962. Director of the Company
since 2006, He is responsible as Chief Finandial Officer and Head of IT. He is a
fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh
(ICAB}. Working for the Company in different roles since Mowember 2001, He
enriches his professional carrier with various training on finance, strategic
management, risk and IT management from different countries like Germany,
Singapore, Indonesia etc. He resclved on making start in the line of business
and succeeded in new strategy one after anocther over two decades of his
carrier.

Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman
Company Secretary

Bangladeshi Citizen, born on June 1, 1979. Company Secretary of the
Company since 2011. Previously, he worked with Bata Bangladesh, Square
Pharma and Rangs Properties in wvarious capacities. He is a gualified
Chartered Secretary. He completed his LL.B. {hons.}), LL.M. from University of
Dhaka and Chartered Secretary from the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of
Bangladesh.

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.
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HC Metherlands Holding

39.8 BV

20.86 HC Asia Holdings GmbH

General Public & Other
Institutions

HAEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

Hlm:uhh-iﬂdu:
HC Netherlands Hnldl'ng 11493015.
| B.V.
| HC Asia Hnldlng:. GmbH | 117843%0 [““ “““““““ ]
Investment Corporation l:lf 2597870 460
Bangladesh (ICB)

j" ICE Unit Fund |E 2229470 1| 3.95 |
| Bangladesh Fund ! 2.85
ICB Amcl Unit Fund |i 598260 i_
A K M Jahangir Khan u 500000 l—
| One Bank Un‘uted' |[ !| |

IFIL Islamic Mutual Fundl | 342400 0.61

[ Trust “Bank 1" Mutual Fund 140750

BRI 2012 | 13



1.General

" Authorised Share Capital
Issued and Fully Paid Capital | | Tk. 565,035,800 |
Class of Shares Ordinary Share of Tk. 10

each
2.Distribution of Shareholding
MNo. of Shares hold - D ar
Mosof 5SH | Total Holding | % | Mos of 5H Total %
| Halding
1 = 5000 12656 3,733,160 | 651 | 12658 373,70,70 | 6.61

5001 — 50000 236 3,336,200 | 590 | 253 357,52,60 | 633 |
50001 - 200000 &0 5429520 | 962 | 57 526,87.90 | 933
200001 — 500000 8 3,074,760 | 544 | 07 2752220 | 487
S00001-10000000 5 B,654530 [ 11.77 I 05 89,2830 | 1220
Ower 10000000 2 34,277,410 | &0.66 02 77,410 | 6D.66

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

3. Payment of Dividend for

ordinary shares of Tk 10/~ | @7k

each to the Share Holders |

~Fiscal Year

ET——
-, [l 3
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2011
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'.}‘ﬁrﬁn‘.ﬁf ntry with @ length of 950 meter over
napk to con ﬁuuuﬂummnnfmmmm
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Honorable Prime Mmhternfﬂmghdashtuaenaa! public in April 2010
Construction Company - RP construction.

Brand Used and Quantity - ScanCement Iexdl.tshrej & 15 thul.rsand metric
fones,

b

The fiyover has a total length of 1.12 Km with atnl:aij_'inns.nd'spann-f
pre-stressed segmental box girder profile. The fiyover was opened for all in
November 2004,

Construction Company - China First Metallurgical Construction Company.
Brand Used and Quantity - ScanCement Imﬂusl'uzi & 20 thousand metric
tones.

o~

Lalon Shah [Pakshey) Bridge, the country's second largest I:rld,gu with a
Ilrmh of 1.8 Km, over the river Fl:h'll at Paksey-Bheramara point opened
to traffic in May 2004,

Construction Company - Major Hl'ld.ll' Engineering Bureau,

Brand Used and l'.‘u.lm'tlt',r S:lntmmt (exclusive) & 65 I:hnunn:l metric
tones, -

e L N L SN o e .

Yv¥ ¥ 'r-'r'

About 1 KM long flyover connecting New Mooring Container Terminal of
Ctg port & Custom house is the first ever flyover of Chittagong.
Construction Company: Bengal Development Corporation Ltd.
Ruby Cement was exclusively usad.

AEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.
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fter Completion of this project Chittagong WASA will be able to supply 136
| mwuwmmmmnumm

mmmmuﬁhmmwmmm

}
Flyaver the biggest project so far under Public Private Partnership, in 2010 at Dhaka.

. About 10 kilomebers long dual cariageway flyover will provide faster road

. connectivity with 30 districts and the Chittagong port.

| ¥ Construction Company - Simplex Infrastructure Ltd, India.

# Using Brand and Estimated Quantity — Scan Cement & 60 thousand metric
Tongi Bhairab ¥ 64 Km double-fine railway btracks from Tongi to Bhairab on the Dhaka -
Double Track Chittagomg amd Dhaka — Sylhet route, will make traén communication more
Project smooth, speedy & safe.

b Eunmﬁ:ﬂunmnpaw:mrmmjurﬂrﬂpemglwingmud.

Estimated Quantity & Brand : 25000 MT & Scan cement

New Mooring ¥» The implementation of Back up Facilities behind Berth No 4 & 5 of New Mooring
Container Terminal Container Terminal of Ctg. Port started on 40 acre area in August 2010.

¥ Construction Company - Project Builders Ltd

¥ Using Brand and Estimated Quantity - RubyCement (exclusive) & 30 thousand

metric tones

Summit Meghna » 335/305 MW Dual Fuel Combined Cycle power plant at Mﬂghmym,
Ghat Project Narayangaon].

* mmmcmrmwmmmmmmm

¥ mmmmwmmmmmmmmﬂm

Four Laining

Chittagong
National Highway to Increase effickency of the road transport and o optimize the
utilization of Chittagang Port Using Brand- RubyCement.




FROM 2008 -2012

Wl

CTERN B T S O 0

Operational Results |Taka in
thousand)
Net Revenuss 10,885,154 B.516,206 8,311,771 7207 246 6,365,516
Gross Profit 2,083,156 1,341 055 1,973 348 1,792 581 1,220,719
Incame From operations 1,556,574 B66,910 1,451,951 1,415,144 97Z, 466
EBITDA 4,04, B84 1327247 1,833 961 1687 ATS 1,159,647
EBIT 1461527 805,395 1,408 886 1,340,153 BES, 227 T
Met Inoome/|Loss) 1,291,094 745,561 958, 725 A50,850 592 524 E
Contribution te National =
R 2,330,370 2,246 535 2,2ER 949 1,642 703 1,277 ER4 E
Financiasl Resubts: {Taka in E‘
thousand) 5
Met Cash Provided by
Operating Activities 1498, M1 1147709 1,158 6595 2,088,762 32,682 %
Total Assets 5,181,511 BO10.B17 1182653 5,030,450 5,870,540 E
Total Liabilities 4,881 486 2747620 2,426,158 2,057 960 4,562 468 —
Shareholders’ Equity B, 300,025 5,263,157 4,576,501 3,572 490 3,308,072 E
Met Warking Capital 3,506,526 2,021 62X 2,507 8342 1,719,119 E3E G E
Met Bornowlings (3,265,412} 2,286,272} {2340,5459) (1,675, 245} 199,161 ﬁ
Capital Employed 7,044,354 5,892,014 518,227 4,368,566 3,489,503 E
Share Information: E
Mariet Capitaliration & af el
315t Decembaer (T in million) o s B EhLS i E
issued Ordinary Shares 5,503,580 56,503,580 5,650,359 5,650,388 5,550,359 i
Per Share Data [Taka) T

Earnings [koss] Per Share Z2.85 1337 177 151 105

Dividend Par Share 5 4.5 43 a8 a3

Book Value per share 162 147 1271 1,067 1,099

Met Asiet Walue per share 111.50 03.15 842 703 585

Market Value per share 264.70 Z48.8 3,653 1150 1,216
Financial Ratios:
Current Aatio 2.684:1 2141 2] 2.03:1 1271
Met Gearing (0.5183) (D.4344) {0.5114) {0.4217) 006
s egiiagal e o 512.72 3023 34 1218.25) 61.35 13.34
(Tirmas}
Met Bornowing to Assats VL] 020 [0.33)
Return on Assets 014 009 0.14
Return on Capltal Employed 018 a1z 0.20
:‘-I:;;n on Sharehobders’ Equity 050 it Al 33
Mumbers of Employeas 257 253 266
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Daniel Lavalle
Chairman
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M THE CHAIRMAN

Dear Shareholders,

| am very delighted and honoured to extend a warm welcome to each of you to the Twenty Fourth Annual
General Meeting of HeidelbergCement Company Bangladesh Limited, | believe all of you are pleased with
the results for the year ended 315t December, 2002. Once again, it is 8 unigue opportunity for us to
exchange views and ideas on the Company activities and performance during the past year and its
repeated growth with potential.

When | look at my years as chairman of your company, | feel a sense of fulfillment on the milestones it has
achieved in the tune with our philosophy of financial sustainability and conservative growth, The process
of deregulation set in motion some years back, has no doubt helped in reaching certain goals and as a
nation and we look forward that Government taking forward the process to enable the economy to achieve
its wholesome benefits. At the pres ent it has to be recognized that the continuing stagnation
in the economic environment can only be set right with bold initiatives to generate foreign direct
investment, improve exports, accentuate cash flows, bridge fiscal deficits etc.

The role of the financial market is a crucial one alongside others measures in economic development.
There is of course no doubt that the markset mechanism has, to a large extents, generated faith in the
investing public, thanks to some measure of transparency ingrained into it. However, it is common ground
that the Regulators need to taka a more wholesome view of the issues in a developing market like
Bangladesh and guickly standardize procedures that safeguards and allow the market to function within
these without many frequent circulars and changes which confuse investors, both retail and otherwise,

| mow come o the specifics in the performance of the company during the year under review.

It has been a milestone year for the company in which it registered 2 strong performance and | take
pleasure in informing that the company turnover has crossed the BTD 1088 core mark showing a robust
growth of 27.82% against last year. The gross profit & net profit have also increased compared to the
previous year showing an Earning per Share BOT 22.85 The performance of the last year has encouraged
Directors to recommend a maiden dividend of 50%. This has been the result of the total commissioning of
the new Grinding Unit-v in our Chittagong plant with an additional at least 750,000 tons of capacity cement
plant at Chittagong in January 2012, set up at a cost of around 115 Cores. The plant achieved a capacity
utilization of 63% in its first year of operation with prices ruling quite steady combined with sustained
demand. The quantum leap in turnover due to this factor considerably helped in boosting the year's results
after absorbing higher interest and depreciation charges.

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.



HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

The company's various upcoming projects are progressing satisfactorly, Your Company is recognized and
acknowledged for its activities under CSR covering all the areas in which the Company operates. It is the
Company's policy to align and integrate social investments/CSR programs with the business value chains
and make them outcome oriented. its operations are tuned to the national objective of inclusive growth
and the employment generation by leveraging the company's diversifying portfolio, manufacturing bases,
commercial and distribution channel to infuse "an appropriate mix of capital and technology to further
soclal business initiatives, The company stronghy believes that the environment in the vicinity of these
manufacturing bases should be vibrant and developing so as to ensure that its business objectives are
achieved with social awareness. Your company continued with its commitment towards ensuring a safe
and a healthy work place for all employees by malntaining the highest level of safety and occupational
health standards and also encourages its supplier's goods and services to follow the same.

| would like to express my sincere thanks and deep gratitude to our esteemed shareholders and my
colleagues on the Bond for their active support and guidance,

My thanks also go to the Governments, stock Exchanges and other statutory Bodies for their support to the
various activities of the company.

The employees have been a source of strength and the company acknowledges  thelr contribution to
the progress of the company.

| also acknowledge the unstinted support extended by our valued customers, Assoclates and cur Bankers

and would like to place on record our sincere thanks to them for their continued faith and the confidence
reposed on us.

Thank You Once Again

Daniel Lavalle,
Chairman, Board of Directors
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EMHHUAL EENERAL MEE-TING

Board of Directors:
{a) Composition:

The Directors of the Boards are appointed by the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and
accountable to the Shareholders. The Board of Directors consist of Seven {7) members including the
Independent Director, The Board is re-constituted every year at each Annual General Meeting when
one-third of the members retire and seek re-election. A director is liable to be removed if the conditions
of the Articles of Association and the provisions of the Companies Act 1994 are not fulfilled.

(b) Role & Responsibilities:

The rele & responsibility of the board of directors is to protect the shareholders' assets and ensure they
receive a decent return on their investment. In HCBL directors feel that it is their primary responsibility
also to protect the employees of the company. The board of directors is the highest governing authority
within the management structure. It is the board's job to select, evaluate, and approve appropriate
compensation for the company's chief executive officer (CEQ), evaluate the attractiveness of and
recommend dividends and approve the company’s financial statements, The Board of Directors hold the
ultimate responsibility & accountability with due delligence for conducting the activities of the company
as per provisions of law in the interest of the shareholders, the stakeholders, the state and the society.
Doing so, the Board of Directors hold periodic meetings, at least once a quarter and provide appropriate
decisions/directions to the Executive Management. Such meetings usually consider operational
performance, financial results, review of budgets, capital expenditure proposals for BMRE or new
projects/divisions/product lines, procurement of funds by issue of shares or borrowing, procurement of
raw materials, plant & machinery, pricing of products/discounts, recruitment, training and promotion of
officers, approval of audited accounts and distribution of dividends and other interest of the stakeholders
including the employees and workers.

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
(c) Board Meeting

Under ADA of the Company the Directors may meet together for the dispatch of business adjourn and
octherwise regulate their meetings and proceedings, as they think fit, The meeting of the Board of Directors
shall be held once in every three months and at least four such meetings shall be held in every year. Mo
business shall be transacted at any meeting of the Board of Directors unless a quorum is present when the
meeting proceeds to business. Four Directors present in person shall form quorum for the meeting of the
Board of Directors. The BOD meets for both scheduled meetings and on other oocasions to deal with
urgent and important matters that require attention.

{d] Relationship with Shareholders & Public:

The shareholders as owners are required to be provided with material information on the company's
operation quarterly, half-yearly and annually, the latter at the AGM. They are also provided routine services
by the Company Secretary in matters of transfer of shares, replacement in case of loss or damage of shares,
payment of dividends etc. The Board is however responsible to the public for publication of any price
sensitive information as per BSEC regulation. A qualified Chartered Secretary is in charge for all these
responsibilities as Company Secretary.

[e] Relationship with Gowvernment:

In its role on accountability to the Government, the Board of Directors ensure payment of all dues to
Government in the form of import duty, custom duty and port charges, VAT, Corporate Taxes and other
levies as and when they become due on the basis of actual operations and make sure to avoid corruption.
This has enabled the Company to enhance its contribution to the Mational Exchequer on a progressive rate
yvear after year,

(f) Corporate Social Responsibilities [C5R):

The Board of Directors are also concern for community development as part of the Corporate Social
Responsibilities [CSR) especially in the areas of gender equality, race-religion-regional equality,
nan-employment of child labour, human rights, environmental pollution, social-marketing, social activities
(promotion of sports & culture, health care and population control programs, elimination of corruption
programs, participation in charitable activities etc. in non-partisan manner} right to form and participate in
Union under ILD convention, employment of disabled etc, Besides this the BOD specially cares for the
education and as such donate entire fund of a School at Rayerbazar, Dhanmondi, Dhaka.

[E] Separate role of the Chairman and Managing Director

The positions of Chairman and Managing Director are held separate persons. The Chairman is responsible
for the functions of the Board while the Managing Director serves as the Chief Executive of the Company.

(h} Chief Financial Officer & Head of Internal Audit

e Company appointed Mr, Jashim Uddin Chowdhury, FCA as Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Mamun = ul =
Ehowdhury as Head of Internal Audit of the Company as per requirement of Bangladesh Securities

WSS On.
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Board Committees:

1. Board Audit Committee [BAC)

The Board of Directors has an Audit Committee consisting of three board members. The Audit Committee
is headed by the Independent Director, Mr. Abdul Awal Mintoo as the Chairman. Other members are Mr.
Jashim Uddin Chowdhury, FCA and Mr. Nelson Borch. The Audit Committee carries out its responsibilities
as per the provisions of law and submits its report to the Board of Directors from time to time. The Audit
Committee shall also co-ordinate with the Internal and external Auditors as and when reguired. The Audit
Committee ensures that adequate internal checks & balances supported by adequate MIS are in place for
detection of errors frauds and other deficiencies. BAC is also responsible for prevention of conflict of
interest between the company and its Directors officials, customers, suppliers, Government and any other
interest groups and detect or remove any scope of insider trading in the company's stock. The Audit
Committee also ensures compliance of requirements of SEC and other agencies.

2. Management Commithee

The Management Committee is led by the Managing Director who is appointed by the Board of Directors
for a term of 3 years (renewable) with the approval of shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. The
Managing Director is supported by professional, well educated, trained and experienced team consisting
of Executive Directors, Directors and a host of Senior Executives in the hierarchy of management. The
Management Committee is responsible for preparation of budgetary segment plans/sub-segment plans
for every cost/profit centres and are held accountable for performance therefor.

3. Safety Health and Environmental Committee

HCBL is committed to comply with all applicable environmental laws, standards and requirements and
takes a proactive and long-term view on environmental matters to prevent pollution and continuously
improve environmental performance. Health & safety is an integral part of all our business activities. It is
the responsibility and duty of each and every employee to take care of Health & Safety meseaures, to
follow all relevant rules, regulations and work in structions and to use appropriate personal protective
equipment as required by applicable law. To ensure Health, Seafety & Environmental compliance Safety
Health and Environmental Committee is worling relentlessly. Mr. Mohammad Alamgir, Head of HR & SHE
is pive additional responsibility as Country Health & Safety Manager being responsible for all HES
management of HCBL. Under his effective leadership overall Health and Safety management of HCBL shall
move forward even more successfully and build a healthy safety culture in the Company.

Company Secretary

To ensure effective assimilation and timely flow of information required by the Board and to maintain
necessary liaison with internal organs as well as external agencies, the Board has appointed a Company
Secretary .The corporate Governance Guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission [SEC)
also require a listed company to appoint a full fledged Company Secretary , as distinct from other
managers of the Company in pursuance of the zame, the Board of Directors has appointed Company
Secretary and defined his roles & responsibilities .

AEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.
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In HCBL, among other functions, the Company Secretary:

[ ] Performs as the bridge between the Board, Management and shareholders on strategic and
statutory decisions and directions.

[ ] Acts as a quality assurance agent in all information streams towards the Shareholders /Board.

[ | Is responisible for ensuring that appropriate Board procedures are followed and advises the Board
on corparate Governance matters.

[ | Acts as the Disclosure officer of the Company and monitors the compliance of the Acts rules,
regulations, notifications, guidelines, orders/directives etc. Issued by the BSEC orStock Exchange(s)
applicable to the conduct of the business activities of the Company so0  as to the interest of the
investars.

Other Governance Apparatus

The Company, in its efforts for Corporate Good Governance Practices, uses a series of top ranking
professional service providers including Legal experts, Bankers, Insurers and Technical experts who
continuously assist the Board of Directors and the Executive Management in properly discharging their
duties to all the shareholders, stakeholders, the Government and the public as highlighted below:

(a) Independent Director:

In compliance of the BSEC Regulations on Good Governance, the Board of Directors as empowered by the
Regulations, appointed Mr. Abdul Awal Mintoo, former President, FBCCI, the Securities and Exchange
Commission, as the non-shareholder Independent Director. It is expected that his expertise would help
contribute to the further disclosure and protect the interest of all investors in general and smaller investars
in particular.

(b) Bankers:

The degree of efficient business operation largely depends on the quality of efficiency of banking services
received by the company. Efficient banking service brings down cost of operations. On the other hand, cost
of financial services and interest on the lending by the banks are also required to be the minimum. With this
end of view, the company has established long term business relationship with the banks namely Citibank
M. A, Standard Chartered Bank, HSBC Ltd., Eastern Bank Ltd,, Mercantile Bank Ltd., Exim Bank Ltd and One
Bank Ltd etc. The company has neither ever defaulted in any commitment with its Bankers nor did get
entangled in legal dispute at any court premises.
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{c) Insurer:

Insurance services cover certain operational risks which are required by law/business practices to be
covered by legitimate insurance service providers for protection of the interest of the company and the
imvestors, To this end, the company has to select insurer with the most efficient, reputed and financially
sound insurance Company for smooth and prompt settlement of valid claims at a competitive premium. The
Company is maintaining insurance with reputed and publicly listed insurance Companies namely Pragati
Insurance Ltd: and Reliance Insurance Ltd. The company has not yet faced any dispute over any claims and
the company enjoys special premium rates which protects the interest of the investors.

{d) Auditors:

The most significant part of certification of the financial statement by a Chartered Accountant firm is done
by M/s ACNABIN in order to comply Corporate Governance guideline, maintain transparency  and above
all protection of interest of investors. In this process, International Accounting Standards (IAS) and
Internaticnal Standard of Auditing (I5A) are maintained strictly. This has been possible due to the high level
capability and integrity of M/s. ACNABIN, Chartered Accountants whose sincere performance has played a
very trustworthy role in the protection of interest of the investors.

(e) Dividend Policy

Dividend policy of the Company refers to the policy chalked out regarding the amount it would pay to their
shareholders as dividend, These policies shape the attitude of the investors and the financial market in
general towards the concerned company. HeidelbergCement is a global company with activities on five
continents of the Globe. The company performs according to capital repatriation and remittance that are
granted by the investment authority which directs payment to be made to the investors. Each shareholder
is entitled to a dividend on the net profit of the Company according to shareholding. The General Meeting
of Shareholders will declare the amount of dividend to be paid. In this process HCBL follows a consistent
dividend policy.
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HeidelbergCement Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the board, assists the board in fulfilling its
oversight responsibilities, The jurisdiction of the HeidelberCement Audit Committee extends over the
Company covering risk management with special emphasis on ensuring compliance with all applicable
legislation and regulation.

Composition and Meetings

Chairman : Mr. Abdul Awal Mintoo, Independent Director
Member : Nelson Gylding Dorrell Borch, Director
Member . Mr. Jashimuddin Chowdhury, Director

A total of 5 [Five) meetings were held during 2012, Company Secretary of the Company functioned as the
Secretary to the Committee as per regulatory guidelines. Head of Internal Audit attended the meetings on
invitation. CEQ & other members of corporate management, representatives of the External Auditors and
other officials were invited to attend the meetings as and when the Committee required their presence,

The Scope of Audit Committee is defined as under:

The detail responsibiliies of Audit commitbes are well defined in the Tarms of Reference [TOR), Howaver,
thie major responsibilities are as follows:

i Review and recommend the Board to approve the financial staterments prepared for statutory
purpose,

it} Report to the Board of Directors on Internal audit findings from time to time considering the
significance of the issues.

ili}) Reviewing the efficiency and effectiveness of internal audit function.

i) Reviewing that the findings and recommendations made by external auditors for removing the
irregularities detected and also running the affairs of the Company are duly considered by the
management.

Activities during the year

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

During the year under review the Committee, interalia, focused on the following activities:

a) Reviewed the internal audit plan for the year 2012 along with the new risk based auditing system;

b) Adopted a standardized reporting format for the Auditors;

) Reviewed the draft financial statements and recommended to the Board for consideration after
holding meeting with the representatives of the External Auditors;

d) Reviewed the Quarterly & Half Yearly Financial Statements of the Company prepared to evaluate
the performance for onward submission to the shareholders as a statutory requirement;

e) Reviewed significant internal audit findings with a view to taking timely corrective actions;

f) Placing of compliance report/minutes before the Board detailing the decisions taken/recommen-
dations made by the committee in various meetings for information/concurrency of the Board on
quarterly basis;

gl The Audit Committee reviewed and examined the annual financial statements 2012, prepared by
the management and audited by the external auditors and recommended the same before the

Board for consideration ;
Abdul Awal Mintoo
20 et 20200

Chairrnan, Audit Committee
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Jose Marcelino Ugarte

Managing Director
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On behalf of the Board of Directors and Management, | welcome you all to the 24th Annual General
Meeting [AGM) of HeldelbergCement Bangladesh Limited and present the report on the Company’'s affairs
and the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2012 thereon for
your valued consideration, approval and adoption,

STATEMENT OF THE COMPANIES AFFAIRS
Another year of Accomplishment -2012

Fiscal 2012, the Company had to operate with multifarious uncertainties and challenges in front, However,
our results for the year are driven by the revenue growth, an improved operating margin and growth in
market share due to successful branding, cost control and somewhat stabilaisation in BDT the second half
of the year. This year impressive growth s registered in the Company's history in every way and we
succeeded to maintain market share and position while maintaining price leadership. The total Income of
your Company In 2012 has reached the BDT 10BE million. In this year the overall performance of the
Company Is very impressive. Taking into consideration the overall circumstances of money market, stock
market and the interest of the investors the Directors recommend a cash dividend of 50 %.

HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited continues to be the leader in the industry in Health and safety,
Corporate Sustainable Responsibility, and emplovee welfare.

S0CI0 ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

In 2012 Bangladesh econonvy has performed in comparison to the world economy and other economles In
the Asian reglon. Bangladesh has achieved average growth rates - its economic growth has not quite stood
out among other countries and is projected to remain close to the developing countries’ average In 2013,
The GDP growth s registered at the six percent mark.

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

Despite of favorable international price trends and monetary tightening inflation in Bangladesh increased to
B.7 percent in 2012, due to price rises In both food and non-food items. Bangladesh has once again
demonstrated its ability to overcome macroeconomic pressure through timely and adequate policy
response notwithstanding the difficult political economy challenges associated with the needed policy
adjustments. Bangladesh will need to continue creating fiscal space and keep monetary policy tight for a
while. Adequate production in two consecutive years and higher government procurement have led to
increased level of stock and supply of food grains.

Fiscal performance in FY12 was favourable, notwithstanding increasing subsidies. The overall budget deficit

in F¥12 is estimated at 4.8 percent of GDP. Domestic financing of the deficit declined to 3.2 percent of GDP,

from 3.5 percent in F¥11, The financial sector has been somewhat stressed throughout 2012, Bank stability
deteriorated and capital market volatility has continued.



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Fiscal performance in FY12 was favourable, notwithstanding increasing subsidies. The overall budget deficit
in FY12 is estimated at 4.8 percent of GDP. Domestic financing of the deficit declined to 3.2 percent of GDP,
from 3.5 percent in FY11. The financial sector has been somewhat stressed throughout 2012, Bank stability
has deteriorated and capital market volatility has continued.

However, banks have been resilient to market shocks such as change in interest and exchange rates. The
general tightening of liguidity has increased deposit and lending rates at commercial banks. The overall
balance of payments reversed from a moderate deficit in FY11 to a small surplus in FY12 due to much
slower than projected import growth and strong growth in remittances. Taking advantage of this the
Bangladesh Bank (BB} has built up its reserve buffer. Foreign direct investment increased in FY12, Warld
Investment Report 2012 ranked Bangladesh 16th among 74 FDI-recipient countries with a record 51.13
billion FDI inflow. This is only the second time Bangladesh’s FOI has exceeded the billion dollar mark in a
single year. However, to attract more FDI the country needs to remove infrastructure bottlenecks, make
land more readily available, upgrade skills of the labor force, and address administrative impediments.
However, Bangladesh's economic outlook would depend of the emerging several short-term challenges
i.e. (&) Further intensification of the euro area crisis may deepen Bangladesh’s export slump, (b) Escalation
of global food prices may reverse the recent decline in food inflation, (c) Increases in global oil price will
place the balance of payments under pressure again and shrink fiscal space, (d) Banks are susceptible to
credit and market risk and the global economic vulnerabilities, () Increased political instability and labour
unrest may depress investments further.

Close surveillance of macroeconomic trends, stronger maonitoring and supervision of banks, and building
policy space is all that the government can do to guard against these risks. While Bangladesh’s grawth is
likely to remain healthy, it is yet below potential. Stabilization policies will need to hold ground on creating
fiscal space and containing government borrowing from the banking system. The longer-term growth
outlook depends on acceleration of reforms to increase investments rates, improve trade prospects, and
ensure inclusion. Most critical to growth will be energy policies that will enable better fuel mix, diversify
the sources of power, provide a regulatory framework for private participation in power generation and
distribution, and further exploit untapped gas reserves while modemnizing and expanding the gas
distribution channel. There is also an urgent need to improve maintenance and management of
Bangladesh's transport system, including ports.

CEMENT INDUSTRY

Bangladesh cement industry is the 40th largest market in the world. Currently capacity of the industry is
about 25 mn tonnes (MT). Top 15 players are alone controlling over about 80% of the total industry capaci-
ty. However, the balance capacity still remains quite fragmented.

Per capita consumption remains poor when compared with the world average; only 85 kg (FY2012) while
our neighboring countries, India and Pakistan, have per capita consumption of 165kg and 150kg respec-
tively. This underlines tremendous scope for growth in the Bangladesh cement industry in the long term.

Cement, being a bulk commodity, is a freight intensive industry and transporting it over long distances can
prove to be uneconomical. For that reason, industry is regional in nature. It's also seasonal in nature,
during Monsaon industry suffers from low demand.

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.
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Urbanlzation and demand for acoommodation have Increased the cement demand by 12% In 2012, This
growth Is expected to continue in the next 5/6 years since the real estate and private sector would grow
steadily with population growth. There are also expectations for more cement consumptions through
Foreign Direct Investment [FDM) and Infrastructure development. Te cope up with the market demand and
growth, HeldelbergCement Bangladesh limited as well as other major manufacturers have already
Increased or are increasing thelr capacity,

EXPANSION

in view of the market growth and capacity imitation of Chittagong Plant, HeldelbergCement Bangladesh has
doubled its capacity in January 2012 at Chittagong Plant.

HCBL has a plan to Install a new cement silo In order to facilitate - catering for Better Scheduling of Silo
Malntenance, Improvement of speclfic power of plant by reducing the number of mill stoppages during the
lean season, catering for a larger buffer stock and reduce the stock out situation time durlng the peak
season and for possible reduction [n maintenance cost due to reduced rellance on external contractors to
speed up sllo maintenance work. This expansion project would te-in the sllo feeding system to the existing
finished cerment. The capacity of the Silo would be BO00mt PCC

SALES AND PRODUCTION

2012 was one of the most successful years for us In terms of business performance. We have registered ever
highest sales volume of 1.49 million tons In 2012 and secured a market share of 11%. Basically entire
production and dellvery had been done through two State-of-the-Art factories at Dhaka and Chittagong.
Undoubtedly, Heldelbergcemet Bangladesh family deserves special thanks for delivering high quality of
products and enhancing the brand image of its two renowned brands ScanCement and RubyCement. Due to
the best quality and strong brand image, both our brands, ScanCement and RubyCement can command
price premium.
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PRODUCT INNOVATION

As part of its relentless pursuit for innovation and constant drive to improve quality, HeidelbergCement
Bangladesh was pioneer to introduce Portland Compaosite Cement (PCC) during 2003 as per BDS EN of BSTI
in Bangladesh. The category Portland Composite Cement (CEM 1) is the mostly used cement type in
Bangladesh and Europe,

#is a German based Group Company, we are continuously investing in new technologies & research.

Recently it was proved in a BUET Test that our brands are "High Sulphate Resistant” as per ASTM C989 and
C1012,

The Result of an extensive research done in HCBL Concrete Lab also showed that the Concrete made with
Scan Cement (PCC) is tested for strength development over ages of concrete till 2 {two) years and found the
gradual increment in compressive strength beyond 28 days. It was found even 65% addition in strength over
28 days’ strength.

Strength Developresnt Patiern of Concrets using ScanCemant:
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CUSTOMER SERVICE

All employees are expected to maintain impartial and cordial relationship with the customers and only to
act in the best interest of the Company. Hence, guality customer service is our top priority. A skilled,
experienced and dedicated team of civil engineers is always ready to provide best solutions and
consultation to our valued customers.,

MARKETING ACTIVITIES

Cement industry of Bangladesh is getting competitive day-by-day due to excess capacity. Maost of the
major cement manufacturers have already extended or are extending their capacity in 2012/13. To gain
moaore market share all companies are initiating aggressive marketing plam.

Scan Cement and RubyCement command "Top of Mind Share”, particularly in markets where these brands
are sold.

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.
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20132 was the year of innovation for us in terms of marketing activities. We took many innovative initiatives
o imcrease our brand visibility and enhance customer loyalty. These initiatives took us to the
Top-of-the-mind of the consumers as well as helped in gaining market share.

1. Enhancing Channel Partners’ Loyalty: For the very first time we offered Europe trip to our key dealers as
2 part of promotion, We organized entertainment programs for dealers and key retailers in Dhaka and
Chittagong under the theme “|et’s celebrate our bonding™.

2. Huge Outdoor Visibility: 2012 was a focus year for outdoor visibility. We magnified our regular outdoor
visibility activities like shop signs, shop painting, billboards, road barriers and wall painting. We also
Initiated Innovative outlet branding in all key markets.

3. Demand Generation Activities: To accelerate the cement consumption, we organized many demand
generation activities through one-to-one communication. This includes end user meet, mason meet and
engineer meet. In 2012, we also organized Technical Seminars for top engineers .of the country in Dhaka
and Chittgong where an overseas specialist from Heldelberg Technology Center (HTC) spoke on different
concrete related technical issues.

4. Brand Image Enhancing Activities: We took many initiatives in 2012 to enhance our brand image [Tke news
branding, press ads highlighting big projects etc. To take the brand image to the next level, we have
assoclated ScanCement with cricket in early 2013 by sponsoring Dhaka Gladiators, champion team of
BPL. We have a plan for 360-degree campalgn in 2013 with top Dhaka Gladiators players like Shakib Al
Hasan, Mashrafe Bin Murtoza and Anamul Hague Bijoy.

RISK MANAGEMENT & INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board of Directors assures the Shareholders that the Company has a robust risk management process
to ensure that the system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored. Although it is possible that all risks to the business are not known at present, the Company takes
reasonable steps to identify material risks that may hamper business results and systematically reviews
these risks in light of the changing internal and external environment in order to asses that the controls in
place are adequate to address these risks. This report further encloses a detailed discussion on the internal
contral framework under the Statement of internal control.

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Heidelbergcement Bangladesh Limited introduced new weighing System in both Plants under ERP in a
straight line for smooth ditchpach function. We also implemented Service Purchase Sub Module for
streamlining procurement of required Service Purchase, It automates the processes of identifying total
related Cost through billing & Payment processes. Moreover, Total Payment Procedure has been centralized
through E-banking for running weekly Payment.
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DIRECTORS DECLARATION AS TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As part of preparation and presentation of the financial statements, the Directors also report that:

The financial statements prepared by the Management of the Company present a true and fair view
of Company's state of affairs, result of its operation, cash flows and changes in equity.

b. Proper books of accounts as required by law have been maintained.

T Appropriate accounting policies have been followed in formulating the Financial State ments and
Accounting estimates are reasonable and prudent,

d. The Financial Statements were prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standards
(BAS) and Bangladesh Financial Reporting 5tandards (BFRS).

B, The CEQ and CFO have certified to the Board that they have reviewed the financlal state ments and
believe that these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain statements that might be misleading.

f. The CEQ and CFO hawe certified to the Board that they have reviewed the financial statements and
believe that these statements together present a true and falr view of the compamy’s affairs and are
in compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws.

B The CEQ and CFO hawe further certified to the Board that there are, to the best of their knowledge
and belief, no transaction entered into by the company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal
or in violation of the company’s codes of conduct.

KEY FINAMCIAL RESULT

Financial Results for the Year 201 2: (Taka in ‘000)

Un-appropriated profit from previous pericd 3,814 637

Met Profit [Loss) for the year after Tax 1,291,094

Total Funds available for appropriation 5,105,731

Directors Recommended:

Proposed Dividend:

Dividend @ 50 % 282,518

Un-appropriated profit carried forward to next year 4,823,213
DIVIDEND

Company's dividend policy s to maintain the consistency and to recommend dividend commensurate with
performance of the company. The Board of Directors recommend cash dividend of Tk 5/- (Taka five) per
share for the year ended 31st December 2012,

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

The Company contributes a substantial amount to the National Excheguer by way of duties and taxes.

HeldelbergCement Bangladesh Lid, contributed to the National Excheguer Tk 2330 million In 2012,

HAEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.
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POST BALAMNCE SHEET EVENTS

n Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the directors recommended a cash dividend of Tk 5/- [Taka
Five) per share,

= Sales from January 2013 to March 2013 are 410,971 MT against 439,928 MT during the same
period in 2011.

u There are no circumstances in the company of which non-disclosure would affect of the users of

the financial statements to make proper evaluation and decisions.
AUDITORS

The Auditors of the Company ACNABIN, Chartered Accountants, BDBL Bhaban [Level-13), 12 Karwan Bazar
Commercial Area, Dhaka -1215, Bangladesh will also retire at this meeting. They are, however, eligible for
re-appointment and have expressed their willingness to be re-appointed for the year 2013.

DMRECTORS PROPOSED FOR RE-ELECTION

As per provision of Article 98(a), Mr. Jashim Uddin Chowdhury, Mr. Nelson Borch and Mr. Defalgue Juan
Francisco are to retire in this meeting and as per provision of the Article 98(c) of the Articles of Association
of the Company and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Morever, Mr. Abdul Awal Mintoo is appointed as the Independent Director of the Company for three Years
effective from 16 October 2012 in compliance with the latest notification of Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission. Following the notification of BSEC, the appointment of the Independent Director
will be approved at the 24th Annual General Meeting.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr. Abdul Awal Mintoo, Ex-President of Federation of Bangladesh Chamber of Commerce & Industries
{FBLCI) is appointed as the Independent
Director of the Company on its 216th
Meeting of the Board of Director held
on 16 October 2012 in compliance with
the latest notification Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission.

HUMAM RESOURCES B CSR

Our Human Resources works as a
business partner in HeidelbergCement
Bangladesh, which contributes to the
continuous  development of the
organization’s efficiency and competitiveness. Creating the environment, to attract, develop, incentivise
and retain the right people within the framework of the HeidelbergCement strategy. We are Trying to

yrpve our own activities by creating an HR, learning community of practice and promoting team spirit.
g build the best management team in our industry”
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HeidelbergCement has been built through the character of its people. The character is refelcted in the
company’s values, which have been fundamental to our success and our continued success depends on to
uphold our corporate culture focusing on integral efficiency, sustainable profitability and a strong
commitment to customer and employvee satisfaction, as well as result-oriented growth, Workplace health &
safety, advanced environmental protection and corporate social responsibility within the communities
where we operate are also key elements of our commitment 1o sustainablility.

Our effort is to successful implementation of the HR mission and responsibilities allgned with the Group's
strategy and the business goals at country level. We ensure all HR compliance with Group and Area policies,
standards, tools etc, and our main focus to Recrult, motivate, develop, remunerate and retain qualified
people and assign them to appropriate and challenging tasks,

We do our best to maintain the successful internal and external positioning of the company within the coun-
try in lime with growp strategy to maximize the company’s success in Bangladesh.

SAFETY, HEALTH & ENVIRONMENT

HeldelbergCement Bangladesh Limited is a good example considering efficient and effective management
of Safety, health and environment. We fixed our targets to achleve zero risk of accidents, Injuries and
occupational liness by putting our best to protect our people from any Safety, Health and Environmental
hazards while we remarkably achieved our targets with ZERD Fatality and Imjury and committed to maintain
our effort in future days. The Company also committed to comply with all applicable environmental laws,
standards and requirements and takes a proactive and long-term view on environmental matters to prevent
pollution and continuously improve our performances, During 2012, the company provided a stimulating
and challenging work environment for its human resources, The SHE department with the collaboration and
assistance from all concerned substantially improved the perfarmanc: on Safenr Health and Environment
area and its critical tasks. The Company strive for
Zero risk of accidents, injuries and occupational
ilnesses by emphasizing prevention, In order to
achieve the best preventive mechanisms and
practice in place, the company emphasizes on
Safety & Emvironmental certification from
internationally reputed group like 150, OHSAS. Our
dedicated Country HE&S department together with
both plants and HR shall ensure a 5afe, Healthy
and Clean working environment, which is not only
beneficiary for our workforce but also to uphold
our social and Environment commitment to |
Heidelberg's stake holders.

The Board of Directors s always supporting the practice of good corporate governance. HCBL |5 adopting
high standard of Corporate Governance consistently for the sound operation of the management team and
it reflects positively on the overall process of the HCBL.

HAEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.
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Corporate Governance is not our obligation; it is one of our responsibilities. Long term growth,
sustainability and effective business operation depends on the sound operation of Corporate Governance.
We have initiated it all over the business by segregation of duties and responsibiliies to ensure
transparency and accountability. Our company fulfills all the regulatory compliance given by SEC.

CORPORATE GOVERMAMNCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

We have the pleasure to confirm herewith that the Company has meanwhile complied with all the neces-
sary guidelines under Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission’s {BSEC) Motification Mo. SEC/CMRRC-
Df2006-158/134/Admin/44 dated 7 August 2012. The Compliance report along with the necessary
rermarks/disclosure is appended in the Directors report of the Company for the year 2012 at Annexure |, 1l
& IIl. Further, a Certificate of Compliaance required under the sald Guidelines, as provided by Hoque Bhat-
tacharjee Das & co, Chartered Accountants is also annexed to this report as Annexure IV,
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IENT OF DIRECTORS
~ RESPONSIBILITY

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 1994, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations. Company law reguires the directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year. The Directors are also required to ensure that the financial statements have been
prepared and presented in accordance with the International Accounting standards (IAS) as applicable in
Bangladesh and provide the information required by the Companies Act 1994, Securities and Exchange
Ordinance 1969, Securies and Exchange Commission Rules 1587 and the regulations of the
Dhaka/Chittagong Stock Exchanges. They are also responsible of taking reasonable measures to safeguard
of assets of the Company, and in that context to have proper regards to the establishment of appropriate
systems of internal control with a view to the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
Under company law the directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that
period.

In preparing the parent company financial statements, the directors are required to -
a) select appropriate accounting policies and then apply them consistenthy;

b) make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

) state whether applicable international Accounting Standard (1A5) as adopted by ICAB have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
anid

d) prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate topresume

that the Company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company’s Website,

Responsibility statement

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:
i} the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework,
give a true and fair view of the assets, labilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company
and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole; and

HEIDELEERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY

i) the entire report of the directors includes a fair review of the development and perfor mance of
the business and the position of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

fii} The Directors endeavor to ensure that the Company maintains sufficient records to beable to
disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the Company and to be able to ensure
that the financial statements of the Company meet with the requirements of the Companies Act,
Bangladesh Accounting Standards and the rules of the Dhaka/Chittagong Stock Exchanges.

M /5. ACMNABIN, the Auditors to the Company, have examined the financial statements made available by
the Board of Directors together with all relevant financial records, related data, minutes of shareholders
and Directors meetings and express their opinion in their report.

By order of the Board

" Kb
Jose Marcelino Ugarte,
Managing Director.
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OTHER REGULATORY DISCLOSURES:

u The Company is aware of its various risks and concerns, mainly from the policy and regulatory
fronts, and is prepared to meet those by systematic control.
= All transactions with related parties have been made on a commercial basis and the basis was

the principal of "Arm’s Length Transaction®. Details of related party and trans actions habe been
disclosed under note 44 of the financial statements as per BFRS.

[ The Company’s IPO was made in the Eighties. No further issue of any instrument was made
during the year,

L From inception, the financial results of the Company have continued to grow as reflected in the
yearly financial statements of the Company.

u As per |AS presentation of Financial Statements, no items of income and expense are to be

presented as extreordinary gain or loss in the financial statements. Accordingly, no
extraordinary gain or loss has been recognized in the financial statements.

] Mo significant variations have occurred between quarterly and final financial results of the
Company during 2012.

u During the year, the Company has paid a total amount of tk. 18,000 as Board meeting
attendance fees, The remumneration of Directors has been mentioned in Note 43.2 of the
Financial 5tatements.

& All significant deviations from the previous year in operating results of the Company have been
highlighted and reasons thereof have been explained.

| Key operating and financial data of last five years have been presented in summarized form in
page no 20,

n The Company has declared dividend for the year 2012,

[ During 2012, & total of 5(Five] Board meetings were held, which met the regulatory
equirements in this respect. The attendance records of the Directors are shown below.

[ ] Shareholdings patterns of the Company as on 31 December 2012 are shown in Annexure-|| to
this report.

[ ] The Directors profiles have been included in the Annual Report as per BSEC Guidelines,

[ ] The number of Board Meeting and the Attendance of Directors during the year 2012
were as follows:

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

Name of the Director :'?

1

bir. Nelson Glyding Borch Director
Mr. Juan Defalque Francisco Director

bar. Daniel Lavalle Chalrman 05 05
bir. Jose Marcelino Ugarte Managing 05 05
Director
Mr. Abdul Awal Mintoo Independent 05 05
Director
Mr. & K M Jahangir Khan Directar 05
hir. Golum Farook Directar 05
bir, Jashim Uddin Chowdhury Directar 05
Dr. Albert Scheuer Director 05
05
05
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The pattern of shareholding (along with detail name) of parent/subsidiaryfassociate companies and
Other Related Parties, Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer,
Head of Internal Audit and their Spouse and Minor Children, Executives, shareholders holding 10% or
more voting interest in the company as at 31 December 2012 duly stated in the report.

Particulars

| Directors:

Chief Executive Officer [CEQ) and his :
spouse and minor children

Chef Financial Officer (CFO) and his 2,340 0.004%
spouse and minor children

Company Secretary (C5) and his spouse -
minor children

Head of Internal Audit (HolA) and his :
spouse and minor children

Executives (Top five salaried person - , &
other than CEO, CFO, C5, HolA):

Shareholders Holding 10% or
voting rights:

HeldelbergCement Netharlands Holdingg "12,453,02-0 38.80%

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

HC Asia Holding GmbH, Germany 11,784,390 20.86%
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g = g PER
Pl - " =iy

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Securities and Exchange Commis-
sion's notification No. SEC/CMRRCD,/2006-158/134/Admin/44: dated 7th August 2012 under
section 2CC of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969;

{Report under Condition No. 7)

COMNDITION
N

Board's Size: The number of the l.*-n:r':d . u shall

Camplied

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

1.1
not be kess than 5 (five] and more than 20 (twenty)

1.2 Independent Directors:

1.2 i} One fifth {1/5) of the total number of directors Complied

1.2 (i) a) Does not hold any share or holds less tham 1% shares | Complied
of the total paid-up shares.

1.2 {il) b) Mot connected with any sponsor/director fshareholder | Complied
who holds 1% or more shares of the total paid-up
shares on the basis of family relationship

1.2 (i} c) Does not have any other relationship, whether | Complied
pecunlary or otherwise, with the company or (ts
subsidiary/associated
Companies

1.2 (i) d) Mot a member, director or officer of any stock Complied
exchange

1.2 {il} ) Mot a shareholder, director or officer of any member | Complied
of stock exchange or an intermediary of the capital
market

1.2 (i) ) Mot a partner or an executive or was not a partner or | Complied
an executive during the preceding 3 (three) years of
any statutory audit firm,

1.2 (i) g) Mot be an independent director in more than 3 (three)| Complied
listed companies;

1.2 (i) h) Mot been convicted by a oourt of competent | Complied
jurisdiction as a defaulter in payment of any loan to a
bank or a NBFI

1.2 i) i) Mot been convicted for a criminal offence involving | Complied
moral turpitede

1.2 (iii} Mominated by the board of directors and approved by | Complied
thie shareholders in the AGM

1.2 () Mot remain vacant for more than 90 (ninety) days. Complied

1.2 {v) Board shall lay down a code of conduct of all Board | Complied

members and annual compliance of the code to be
recorded.

PR eport 2012 | 47
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COMNDITION TITLE
MO, ?
1.2 (i) Tenure of offloe of an Independent director shall be | Complied
for & pericd of 3 [three) years, which may be extendead
for 1 [one) term anly
1.3 Cualification of Independent Director (1D)
1.3 [i] Knowledge of Indepandent Directors Complied
1.3 [ii} Background of Indepandent Directors Complied
1.3 [iii) Special cases for qualifications Complied
14
1.5 [i] Industry cutlook and possible future developments | Complied
i in the industry
ar 1.5 [ii] Complied
-+ 1.5 (i) Risks and concerns Complied
W 1.5 {iw) Discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit BMargin Complied
a and Met Profit Margin.
E 1.5 (v} Discussion on continuity of any Extra-Ordinary gain or | Complied
o Ioss
2 1.5 {wi) Basis for related party transactions Complind
g 1.5 [wil) Utdlization of proceseds from public Issues, rlghts ssues | Complisd
= and/or through amy others
E 1.5 [wiii] Explanation if the financial results deteriorate after | Complied
= the company goes for PO, RPO, Rights Offer, Direct
Ly Listing.
g 1.5 [ix) Explanation about significant variance occurs between | Complied
o Quarterly Financial performance and Annual Financial
: Statements
o 1.5 (x] Remuneration to directors Including independent | Complied
E directors
% L5 [xi] Falrness of Financial Statement Complied
3 1.5 [xid) Maintenance of proper books of accounts Complied
1.5 (uiil) Adoption of appropriate accounting policies and Complied
estimates
1.5 (=) Fellowed 145, BAS, IFRS and BFRS in Complied
preparation of financlal statements
1.5 [xw) Soundness of internal control system Complied
1.5 [ii} Segment-wise or product-wise performance Complied
1.5 [av) Abllity to continue as a Eoing concern Civmplled
1.5 [awii} Significant deviations from the last year's Complied
1.5 [wviii Key operating and financial data of at least preceding | Complied
5 [five) years
1.5 [mix) Rexsons for not declared dividend Complied
1.5 [wx] Mumber of board meetings held during the year and | Complied
attendance
1.5 [xni) Pattern of shareholding:
1.5xui) @) Parent/Subsidiary/&ssociated Companies and other Cexmigalied
relaved parties
Directors, CEC, €% CFRO, HIA and their spouses and | Complied




REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

CONDITION TITLE
NO. " i

1.5{xxi} c] Executives Complied

1.5 xki} ) 1% or more voting interest Coamplied

1.5 [xwmil] Appointment/re-appaintment of director:

1.5{xxii) a) Resume of the director Complied

1,5 xui) b} E:Flerl:i!:l-! in e-:_prrl:iﬁ-e.: functonal areas Camplied

1.5{xuii) ) Holding of directorship and membership of committeas | Complied
of the board other then this company.

2.1 Appaintment of CFO, HIA and C5:

Iz Attendance of CFO and C5 at the meeting of the Board | Complied
of Directors

3 Audit Committes :

3 (i} Constitution of Audit Committes Complied

3 (i) Assistance of the Audit Committee to Complied
Board of Directors

3 (i) Responsibility of the Audit Committes Complied

3.1 Constitution of the Audit Committes:

3.1 (i) At lpast 3 (three] members Complied

3.1 (i} Appointment of members of the Audit Committes Complied

3.1 [iiv) Qualification of Audit Committee members Complied

3.1 [iw) Term of Service of Audit Committer Members Complied

3.1 (v Secretary af the Audit Committes Camplied

3.1 [w) Quorum of the Audit Committes Complied

1.2 Chairman of the Audit Commitbes

3200 Board of Directors shall select the Chalrman. Complied

3.2 [ii} Chairman of the audit committee shall remain present | Complied
in the AGK.

13 Rale of Audit Commitbes

231 Owersae the financial reporting process Complied

3.3 [ii} Monitor choice of accounting policies and Principles Complied

3.3 [iii} Momitor Internal Control Risk mlnagrml:nt Process Complied

3.3 [iv) Owersee hiring and performance of external Auditors Complied

3.3 [v] Review the annual Ffnancial statements before | Complied
submission to the board for approval

3.3 [wi) Review the quarterty and half  wearly fpancial | Complied
itaternents  before subrmigtion o the Board for
approwval

3.3 [wii) Review the adeqguacy of internal audit Function Complied

3.3 [wii] Review statement of significant related party Complied
transactions

3.3 [lx) Review Management Letters) Letter of Internal | Complied
Control weakness ssued by statutory auditors

3.3 [x] Disclosure about the usesfapplications of funds raised | Complied
by [POYRPOSRight issue
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CONDITION TNE TS
no. Stk i 5
= ¥
SRy 1
3.4 Reporting of the Audit Committes:
3.4.1 Reporting to the Board of Cirectors: Complied
3.4.1 i) Activities of Audit Commities Complied
3.4.1 [ii) a) Conflicts of interosts Complied
3.4.1 (i) by Material defect in the internal control system Camplied
3.4.1 (i) £ Infringement of laws, rules and regulations Complied
3.4.1 (i) d) Ay other matter Complied
3.4.2 Reporting to the Authorities Complied
35 Reparting to the Sharehalders and General Investors Complied
fa a Engagement of External /Statutory Auditors:
= | 4 {i} Appraial or valuation services or Fairmess Opinions Complied
E & (i) Financial infarmatian systems design and Camplied
— Implementation
g 4 (i) Berak-keeping Camplied
T 4 fiv) Broker-dealer services Complied
r 4 4 (v} Actuarlal services Complied
g 4 (il Intermal audit services Complied
e 4 {wii) sorvices that the Audit Committee Determinegs Complied
E 4 {wiii Audit firms shall not hald amy share of the Company Complied
= they audit.
E 5 Subsidiary Company :
(L] &5 i} Compasitian of the Board of Directors MiA
E & (i) At least 1 {one) independent director to the subsidiany MSA
E company
g & 4] Submission of Minutes to the holding Company M
] 5 K] Review of Minutes by the holding company MSA
E 5w} Revlew of Financlal Statement by the holding compamy M
B. Dutles of Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Finandisl Officer:
B |} a} Reviewed the materially untrue of the finandal Complied
staterment
B §i} b} Reviewed about compllance of the accounting standard | Complied
B i) Reviewesd about fraudulent, [legal or violation of the Complied
company's code of conduct
7. Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance:
T L} Oiotain certificate about compliance of conditions of Complied
Corporate Governance Guidalines
7 (M) Amnexure attached in the directors' report Complied
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CERTIFICATE OF THE COMPLIAMCE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HeidelbergCemant Bangladash Limited

[As required under the BSEC Guidelines)

We have examined compliance to the BSEC guidelines on Corporate Governance
by HeodelbergCement Bangladesh Limited for the year ended 31" December
2012. These guidelines relate to the notification no SEC/CMRRCD/2006-
158,134/ Admin/44 dated 7 August 2012 of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission (BSEC) on corporate Govermance. Such compliance to the codes of
Corporate Governance Is the responsibility of the company. Dur examination was
limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the
Management in ensuring compliance to the conditions of Corporate Governance.
This is a scrutiny and verification only and not an examination of opinien or audit
on the financial statements of the company.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations provided to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the
conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the above mentioned
Guidelines kssued by BSEC. We also state that such compliance is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the company nor a certification on the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

of the company.

f,{-:;;:-iﬁl#w&‘_}i“ﬁﬁ (e
Dated: Dhaka Chartered Accountants
March 28, 2013

Sulls ¥ 802, Palon Tower (5% Floor, 87, Purana Paion Line, Dhaka- 1000
Tead - #2000 [2) SI55801 Faoc « B0 () GRS540T, E-mll © inlei@hbdot.ong, Web : www hbdonorg
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AL RESPONSIBILITY

*Social responsibility is integrated into the daily operations and supports the successful development of the
company”. HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited Is deeply committed to the people, society and country
where it operates. We are doing business contributing efforts of developing the economy, while under our
HR Leadership. We are also trying to improve the welfare of its employees and the community arcund ws.
Owur C5R programs are based mostly philanthropic in nature.

Dur focus areas for ‘C5R activities' and the support provided as C5R in the following thematic areas such as
Festivals, Education, Social Entrepreneurship, Protecting the Environment and preventing Climate Change,
Poverty Reduction, Employment Generation, Sports, Community Development, Skill development,
Donations or assistance to organizations involved in helping people in need in the urban or rural
communities, Donations to help vicims of natural disasters such as cyclone, earthquake, hurricane and
flooding, etc.

Currently we are supporting two external major
projects to  support  poor children  in their
advantaged education besides other notable
Initiatives,

Project 1: Funding of *Shiddirgonj Reboti Mohan
Pilat Higher Secondary School (SEMPHSS) * under
free education Project.

. Marme of the School; SHIDDIRGOMN]
REBOTI MOHANM PILOT HIGHER SECCOHN D-
ARY SCHOOL

. Project Location: Shiddirgonj, Narayangon).
. Project Duration: 01 Year {January 2013 ~ December 2013)

. Total cost of the project: Taka 256,500/= which includes Admission Fees (Yearly — One time),

Monthly Tuition Fees, All Exam fees -
———— [ TR
I MEMDSLEE T BN nasam o TEM [T

Praject 2: "Chetona Bikash Kendra [CBE): Scholl for
slumn Children®

. Name of the Organization: Community
Development Library [CDL)

. Project Location: 215, Sher-e-Bangla Road,
Raver Bazar, Mohammadpur, Dhaka,

Project Duration: March 2012 ~ February 2015

Total cost of the project: March 2012 = February 2013 @ 27 42,052 BOT (32,643 LUSD)
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HEIDELBEERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of HeidelbergCement Bangladesh Limited which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012, statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes In equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policles and other explanatory information for the year then ended,

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act 1994, the Securities
& Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations. This responsibility includes: designing,
implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair representation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility Is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit, We conducted
our audit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing [B5A), Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud and error.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design awdit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
contral. An audit also Includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the owerall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Dpinkon

In our opinion, the financial statements prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting
Standards [BFRS), give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2012 and
of the results of its operations and cash flows for the vear then ended and comply with the Companies Act
19594, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that:

al We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as reqguired by law have been kept by HeidelbergCement
Bangladesh Limited so far as it appeared from our examination of these books;

c) The Company’s statement of financial position (balance sheet) and statement of comprehensive
income (profit and loss account) dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of
account and returns; and

The expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the company’s business,

¥
ACMARIN
Chartered Accountants




AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2012
A5 152 fe) __Figures in Thousand Taka
M5 LI13 Motes 2012 2011
ASSETS
45 160 MNon-Current Assets
1A% 1.84(a) Property, plant & eguipments & 3,400,309 2384 B80S
145 1.55 Capital wark- in-progress 5 136,850 1,084 604
M5 1.54c) Intangible assets 4] &GS 979
3,537,828 3,470,392
A5 160 Current Assets
M5 1.54(g) Inventories 7 1,188 409 1,121,551
145 1.54(h) Trade and other receivable 8 917,784 801,247
5 1.55 dvance, deposits and prepaymen 9 7521 156,572
A5 15401} Cash and bank balances 10 3,459 968 2461056
_ 5543683  4.540425
Total Assets _Hhili,!l.l 8,010,817
ECUITY
Shareholders' Equity
A5 1. 78e) Share capital 11 565,036 565,036
A5 1. 78fe) Capital reserves 12 605,657 605,657
Revenue and Surpluses:
1A% 1. 7Efe) General reserve 15,000 15,000
A% 1. 78e) Divldend equalization fund 8,500 8,600
145 1.780e) Retained eamings 5,105,732 4,068,504
6,300,025 5263197
LIABILITIES
fA5 L0 Man-Current Liabilites
45 1.55 Suppliers' credit-blocked 13 2,565 2,565
1A% 1 5% Cuasi equity loan 14 122,636 122 636
145 1.55 ADP lgan 142 12,6090 12,699
A5 1.55 Deferred lability - gratuity 15 65,803 53,251
45 1.54{a) Deferred tax liability 16 540,626 437 666
744,329 628,817
145 160 Current Liabilites
145 1.54k] Trade and ather payables 17 1,898,622 1944891
4% 1.55 Short term loan 18 58,657 36,884
tAs L5 Provision for other liabilities and charges 19 95,055 58,285
A5 1.54(1) Provision for tax liabilites 15,550 16,132
A5 1.55 Unclalmed dividend 20 5&,2?.2 52,5_1_!_
2,137,157 2118803
Total Liabilities 1,881,486 2,747,620
Total Equity and Liabilities 1 11 _E_E_‘.I._Ilﬂ.l
These financial staterments should be read in conjunction with the annexed notes,
III|I.--' LW | 3
Moham Miostafizur Rahman luHml.h’d Chowdhury, FCA Marceling Uigarte
Camparny Secretary Director Ma=agng Director
1y
Dhaka, ACNABIN
15 P.prIIIJ!IJ Chll"lll'ﬂ ﬂmu

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

HEIDELBERGCEMEMT BANGLADESH LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

—
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

45 1.511af
145 1.T00H)
A5 1.5 (e}

A5 1.50(d). =
A5 1113

145 1.22/a)
1A% 1 949

145 1.85

A5 1.85

A5 1,99 1.207
145 1,981,207
A5 1.85

145 1,88

145 185

M5 1,59

A5 1.85
IA5 2. 82/d)

IAS 1.827

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

in Thousand Taks
Mote: 2012 2011

Sales 3 10885154 8,516,206
Cost of goods sold 4 (8,801,998) {7,175,151)
Gross profit 1,083,156 1,341,055
Dther operating income 25 28,711 18,511
Warehousing, distribution and selling expenses 26 [176,831) (144,527
Administrative expenses 27 [37E 462] [3a8,129)
Operating profit 1,556,574 866,910
Non-operating incoma 28 8 &70
Financial Income 29 344,578 298,120
Contribution to Weorker's Profit Participationfund 19 [95055] [58285)
Prafit before income tax 1806054 1107415
Incorme tax expense 30 (514, 960] (357,754)
currant year | [395,000) [283,000)
Prior year | [(17.000)

Deferred tax | (102,960} [74,754)
Profit for the year 1291088 _ 749,661
Earning Per Share [EP5) E i 2185 13.27

These financial statements showld be read in conjunction with the annexed notes.,

|'-. J ;
W

A A b

Ll ;
Mohammad Mostafizur Rahman lashim Uddin Chowdhury, FCA Jose Marceling Ugarte
Company Secretany Directos Managing Director
'
Dhaka, ACMHARIN
15 Apeil 2013 Chartered Accountants
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IAS 1.51{a)
LAS 1. 10(d)
1A% 1 51(d).c]

A5 1.53{d]. (e

1A% 1115
IAS 7.10
IAS 7 180
45 7.14(h)
45 7_14/c)

A5 731

A5 7 35

AS 710, F.21

A5 7. 160a)

45 7.160h)

s Fio, £2l

A% 7 31
LAS 717

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

Naotes

A. DPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash recelved from custamers 32
Cash recelved from other operating income
Cash paid to suppliers a3
Cash paid for operating expenses 34
{Payment |/ reversal of financial expenses
Income Tax Paid 35
Net cash flow from operating activities

B. INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fived assets 36
Sale of fived assets ar
Net cash used In inmeesting activities

C. ANANCIAL ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid 38
Short term loan (Repayment)/Received 39

MNet cash flow from financing activities
D. Met cash (increase)/decrease during the year

(A+B+C])
E. Opening balance

Closing balance (D+E) 10

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

_Figures in Thousand Taka

2012

10,764,495 8£,312,162
396,556 283,969
(8,341,050 (6,017,564)
(886,078B)  (973.089)
[22,601) (18,178)
(412,532) _ (439,581)
1,498,791 1,147,709
(300,877)  (991,550)
50 714
|l b e

(221,825)  (211,149)
22,773 13,007
(199,052)  (192,142)
998,913 [35.771)
2,461,056 2,496,327
3,459,969 2,461,056

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annexed notes,

K A b

lose Marcelino Ugarte
Managing Director

R
e l-m-l!
Moham Mostafizur Rahman Jashim U ury,FCA

Company Secretary

Dhaka,
15 April 2013

Cirector

Iy
ACHABIN
Chartered Accountants

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4A5 1.5 fm HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LIMITED

M5 13000} NOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
a5 1.5 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
A5 1. 3l 1 Corporata history of reporting entity

The Chittagong Cement Factory (project) was established under Central Ordinance o, X004
of 1964, The factory sarted production of Portland cement on 30 June 1974, The installed
production capacity was 300,000 M.T per annum. The Profect was Incorporated as a Private
Lirited Company on 30 June 1979 and the Company was placed under Bangladesh Chemical
Industries Corporation (BOC) with effect fram 1 July 1983, The Company was converted inte a
Public Limited Company in February 1989 after revaluation of assets as well as finalization of

The Company commenced commerclal production of their second unit with effect from 1
Mowember 1595, The production capacity of the second unit is 500,000 M.T, At 10th April 2004,
Kanchpur plant installed mew mill with capacity of 450,000 M.T per anaum,

The total production capacity of Dhaka & Chittagong plant currently stands at 2,370,000 M.T.
per annwn, The Campany in its 5th Extra Ordinary General Mesting of shareholders held an 3
October 2002 approved the schama of Amalgamation of Scance mant International Limited and
Scancemant Bangladesh Limited with Chittagong Camant Clinker Grinding Co. Ltd, {Prasamnthy
HeldelbergCement Bangladesh Lid.). The Hon'ble High Court Diviston of the Supreme Court of
Bangladesh sanctioned the approval of the above Scheme of Amalgamation by an order dated
11 Fanuary 2003.

The reglsterad office of the company is situeated (n South Halishahar PO, 372, Chittagong. The
address of the cperational head quarter i st Symphany, Plat: SE (] 9, Read: 1432, South Avenue
Gulshan-1 Dhaka. Its shares are listed with Dhakca Stodk Exchange Limited and Chittagong Stock
Exchange Limited,

The number of employess at the year-end was 267 (20011: 253 Employees |
4As 1.38]m) 1  Nature of sctivities

The principal activities of the company throughout the year continued to be manufacturing and
rsarketing of gray cement considering two brand names Ruby and Scan Cement

A5 1.112(a) 3 Summary of significant accounting and valuation policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are
sef out below. These policies have been consistently appBed to all the years presented, unless
atherwise stated. The specific Accounting Policles selected and applied by the company's
managemant for significant transactions and events that hawe a material effect within the
framewoark of 1A5%-1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” in preparation and presentation of
financial staternents. Compared to the previous year, there were no significant changes in the
accounting and valuation principals affecting the financial position and performance of the
company. Accounting and valuation methods are disdosed for reasons of darity.

HEIDELBERGCEMEMNT BANGLADESH LTD.

45 1117 3.1 Basisof preparation of the financial statements
{a) Aceounting standards

The financlal statements of the company have been prepared In sccordance with International
Aecounting Standards (IAS) and International Financial Reparting Standards (IFAS) as adopted
by tha Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh [ICABR),

|B] Accounting Convention
The finencial statements are pregared under the historical cost comention except items af
fixed assets revalued in 19BE at Chittagong plant. The company classified the expenses using
the function of expanses method as per 1A%5-1.




HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a5 21,23

3.2

{c) Legal compliance
The financlal Statements have been prepared and the disclosures of Informaton made in
aocordance with the regquirements of the Companles Act 1994, The Securities and Exchange
Rules of 1987, the listing Rules of Dhaka and Chitt sgong Stock Exchange and |A%:s adogted by
the CAB. On the basls of these regulations, Banpladesh Accounting Standards (BAS) &
Bangladesh Financlal Reporting Standards (BFRS) were applled with the applicable standards at
the balance sheet date (LAS and IFRSs are adopted by the ICAB as BAS and BFRS reporting).

[d) Critlcal sceaunting estimates, sssumptions and judgments

The preparation of the financlal statements In conformity with IAS/IFRS requires the use of
certaln eritical sccounting estimates. It also reguires management to exerclse its Judgment in
the process of applying the company's accounting pollcles,

{e) Application of standards

The folbowing [A5s are applicable for the financial staternents for the year under review:
145 1 Presentation of Financlal Statements

145 2 Inventories

145 7 Cash Flow Statements

145 8 Accownting policies, Changes In Accounting Estimates and Errors
145 10 Events after the Balance sheet Date

145 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

145 18 Revenus

145 189 Employes Benefits

145 21 The effects of Chamnges in Forelgn Exchange Rate

145 23 Borrowing cost

145 24 Related Party Disclosures

145 26 Accounting and Regorting by Retirement Benefits Plans

1A% 33 Earnings Per Share

145 37 Provishon, Contingent Liabilites snd Contingent assets

145 38 Intangible Assets

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the applicable rates of exchange ruling at the
transaction date In accordance with WS 21 "The Effects of Changes in Forelgn Exchange Rates" .
Forelgn Currency transactions are trenslated at the exchange rate ruling en the date of
transaction. Forelgn currency monetary assets and liabilies ab the balance sheet date are
translated at the rates prevailing on that date. Exchange differences at the balance shest date
are charged foredited to the profit and loss account, to the extent that this treatment does not
contradict with the Schedule Xl of Companies Act 1994, This Schedule requires all exchange
galns and losses arising from foreign currency borrowings, taken to finence acgulsiton of
construction of flxed assets, to be credited, charged to the costfvalue of such assets,

The rate of relevant forelgn exchange at year-end:

1z 2011
1 US Dallar = Taka 79,80 BLTS

1 ELIRD =Taka 105.3% 1059




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A% 1624 3.3 Property, Plant and Equipment

Tangible fiued assets are accounted for according to 1AS 16 (Property, Plant and Eguipmant] at
histarical cost of revaluation (made 1988) leds sccumulated depreciation and the Capgital work-
in-pragress ks stated at cost. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly atiributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent cost are Included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
a5 appropriate, only when it is probable that future econamic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. AN other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the intome statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred. In compliance with the provisions of the Companles Act 1554, sdjustment i
made o the original cost of fived assets acquired through foreign currency loan at the end of
each financial year by any change In lability arising out of expressing the outstanding forelgn
loan at the rabe of auchange prevailing at tha date of balance sheet,

Land Is mot depreclated. Depreclation on other assets ks caloulated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts over their estimated useful lives. In respect
of addition of fixed assets, depreciation s charged from the month of addition. No depreciation
is charged in tha month of disposal,

in Chittagong plant, the method of depreclation has been changed during the year 2002 from
reducing balance method to straight-line method, Assets acquired prior to 1989 are identified
and the written down value as on 31 December 3001 has been considered for charging at 10%
p.a. e to charge out the WDV within ten {10) years.

Category of assels Rate of Depreclation
Buildings 4% to 5%
Mant and Machinery 5% to 10%
Furniture and equipment 10% to 20%
Transport and vehlcles 20%

s re 2 314 Intangible Assets
W5 2E 118 Computer Software

Acquired computer software's capitalized on the basis of the oosts incurred to acguire and
bring to use the specific software, These costs are amortized ower their estimated useful Fees.

szl 3.5  Inventories

Inventories are valued in accordance with LAS 2 (Inventories) at the lower of cost and net
reglizable vakse. Adequate Provisions were made for slow moving spares. The cost of finished
goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct and related production overheads
(based of mormal capadty) and production related depreclaton. |t excludes bomowing costs.
Net realizable value is based on estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
any further costs expected to be Incurred to make the sale.

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

Eategory of stock Basis of Valuation

Rew & Packing materials ¢ Abwelghted average cost

Finished Goods ;AL cost

Stores, Accessories and Spares t AL welghted sverage cost
Goods-in-transit r At cost ingurred till the balance sheet date

MSLTENY 36 Trede and other recelvables
Trade accounts receivable are carried at original invoior amount bess an estimate made for
doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding amourts at the year-end.

A5 748 3.7 Cash and cash eguivalents
It includes cash in hand, bank deposits and othes shat tesm highly liquid investments with
original maturities of theese months or less and bank overdrafts which were held and avallable for
use by the company without any restriction, and there was insignificant risk of changes in value
af these current assets.

lgmzm 2| 61
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451119 1.8 Borrowings
Borrowings are classified into both current and non-current liabilities. Moreover in complance
with the requisements of 145 23 [Bafrowing Cost), inberest and other costs inturred by the
- company that are directly attributable to the acquisiton, construction or production of a
' gualifying asset form part of the cost of that assat. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an
BXpESE.

145 15,130 3.9 Employes benefils
' (8] Provident fund
The company operates a contributory provident fund for its permanent employees, provision for
. which is being made annually as per the rules. The fund is approved by the Mational Board of
| Revenue (MBR), administered by a Board of trustees and & funded by contribution parthy from
the emplayes and partly from the company at predetermined rates. This contribution is invested
separataly from the company's assets,

| [b) Group insurance benefit
' The permanent employvess of the company are covered under a group term Insurance scheme
Premiurm for which it being charged to profit and loss account.

(c) Employess' retirement gratuity

The Company maintans gratuity scheme for its all-eligible permanent employees. The obligation
is two months last basic salary or wagaes drawn at the time of their respective cessation of
employment for employees joined before amalgamation in their former Chittagong Cement
Clinker Grinding Company Ltd, as per terms of confract and one month's baslc salary for
employaes joined after amalgamation,

{d) Workers' Profit Participation Fund [WPPF)
The coempany recopnizes a provision and an expense for \Workers Profit-sharing & 5% of net
profit before charging the contribution as per Act.

[as 1119 3.10  Liabiltes
Liabdities are classified sccording to current and non-current.

{a) Trade and other payables
Liab#ites are recorded at the amount payable for settlement In respect of goods and services
received by the company.

A5 37.85 [b) Provisions
Prowvisians are |Eabilites of uncertain Biming or amount, Provisions are recognized when the
company has a present legal of constructive obligation as & result of past events, it is probabde
| that an outflow of resources embodying economic banefits will be repaid to settle the obligation,
: and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made,

! Provisians for employes benefits and similar other lisb@ities are determined in accordance with
145 1% and IAS 26. All remaining provisions are recognized by making the best astimate of the
amounts in accordance with LAS 37 (Provisions, Contingant Liabilities and Contingent Assats).,

A5 11140 3,11 Contingent [fabilities and assets
: Contingent liabilites and assets are current or possible obligations or assets, arising from past
i events and whose exdstence 5 dee to the oourrence or non-occurmence of one ofF more
| uncertain future events which are not within the control of the company. In accordance with 145
37, they are disclased in the notes to the financial staternents,

; 51119 3.12 Revenue recognition

' &, The company recognized sales when products are imvoiced and dispatched to the buyers,
b. Interest income on bank deposits and short-term investments is recognized on accrual basis,
c. Other Income ks recognized on recelpk or due basls,

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Advertising and promotional expenses
Al costs associated with adwvertising and promational activities are charged out in
the year It i5 incummed.

Research, development and experiment costs
These are uswally absorbed as revenue charges as and when incurred, a5 being not
that material in the company's and/ of local contest,

Stocks write offfdown
It Includes the cost of writing off or writng down the value of redundarnt / damage
of obaolete stocks, which are dumped and [ or ald stock.

Repair, upkeep and maintenance charges
These are usually charged out as revenue charges.

Basis allacation of depreciation in different overheads s as fallows:
Basis albacathon of depreciation i different overheads are as follows:

Labaur and overheads 75%
Warehouse, distribution & sefling 15%
Adrninistration 103
Income tEx

(a) Currant tan

Provision i made at the ruling rate of tax applied on "estimated” total Income.

{b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax i recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabdties
in the fnancial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit, and ane acoounted for using the balance sheet |labilkty method. Deferred tax llabllithes ara
generally recognized for all taable temporary differences, and deferred tax aisets are generally
recagnized for all deductible tamporary differences to the sxtent that it is probable that taxabla
profits will ke available against which thase deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Cash Flow Statement
Statement af Cash Flows is prepared principally in accordance with WS 7 (Cash Flow Statement)
and the cash fiows from operating activities have been presented under direct method,

Environmental expenditure
Ervironmental expenditures, which Increase life, capactty or result in improved safety or
efficiency of a facility, are capitalized.

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.
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4.1

Praperty, Plant and Equipment- Note 3.3

Cost or Aevaluation
AL 1 January 2011
Additions

Disposal
December 31, 2011

Deprecation

At 1 lanuany 2001

Depreclation charged during the year
Disposal

December 31, 2011

Net Book value at December 31, 2011

Cost or Revaluation
At 1 lameary 2012
Additions

Disposal

December 31, 2012

Depreciation
At 1 Jamuary 2012

Depreciation charged during the year
Digposal
December 31, 2012

Net Book value at December 31, 2002

Figures in Thousand Taka
Land and Plart and Furniture Transport Total
Bulldings  Machinery and and Vahichas
Eguipment

1463,352 15578438 B4,431 10600 4516271
55945 119,653 4,074 B,697 136,410
{26) (13,413} (1,238)  (14.67E)
1463311 3,077,541 75,092 16,058 4,638,002
557,169 1,377,826 65,856 6,740 2,047,601
31493 182,10 5,188 411 220,271
{26) {13413} {1.239) _ (14.678)

629,635

57,641

——ten e —ar

Miﬁm

1468311 3,007,541 75,053 16,058 4,638,002

437,066 47,658 1,695 5854 1,248,283

- - {96 {zoa} (296)

1906377 3,875,199 &2,691 21,712 5,885,589

B29.636 1555935 57,641 55982 2,253,194

41443 183,831 6378 1994 232646

g ~ ) {158) 159

671078 1,742,766 B4,018 7817 2485 EA0
1135199 ~ ZL13L433 18,678 13,905 3,400,309

Land and building includes an amount of Taka 40,741 thousand represents development of keasehold land of
Chistagorg plant. Cost of land development on factery land has been amertized & 10% p.a with effactive from 200E,

The make-up of depreciation enpense- Note 4

Labour and overheads - Note 24.4

Warehousing, distribution and selling expenses - Nate 26

Administrative expense - Note £F

64 I annual repw_

Figures in Thousand Taka

31 Dec. 202 31 Dec. 2011

174,484 165,203
34,897
13,265

33,041
22,037




A5 177

45 3. 118

(A5 178 c)
(A5 2,56 fi)

T

Capital Work-in-Progress-Note 3.3

Particulars

At 1 January 21
Additions
Disposal/Capltalization
Decemiber 31, 2011

At 1 January 2012
Addition
Dizposal/Capitakation
December 31, 2012

Intangible Assets - Note 3.4

At 1 Janary 2011
Addition
December 31, A1

Depreciation
At 1 January 2011

Depreciation charged during the year
December 31, 2011

Het book value at December 31, 2011

At 1 January 2012

Additon

December 31, 2012

Deprediation

At 1 January 2012

Depreciation changed during the year
December 31, 2012

Net book value at December 31, 2012

Immentories - Mote 3.5, 24

Raw mater|als
Finithed goods
Facking materials
Stores and spares

Provision for slow moving spares

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Figures in Thausand Taka

Land and Plant and Fuernitura Total
Baildings Machinery and
Equipment
- 220,464 - 25464
315,200 B51,060 15,000 981,260
]5-1“3! {120,920 - [126,120)

310,000 758,604 15000 1,084,604

310,000 759,604 15,000 1,084,504
143,839 148,509 315 292 863
(436,719) (797,575 (6,323} (1,240,617)
17,130 110,538 5182 136,850

__Figures in Thousand Taka [
Software Total =
6577 6577 =

: - -

6577 5,577 E
4,326 4,316 o
1,272 1,272 =
55098 g

978 979 —

Fa

B,577 6,577 i

348 4B E

6,925 6,925 W

4]

5 508 5598 7

658 658 =

6256 6,256 E

669 669 =

- =
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A% L7E (b

A5 LFF

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

A5 LIF
A5 745
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|

4.1

82

23

9.4
9.5

Trade and other receivables- Note 3.6
Trade receivables

Considered goods

Considerad doubtful

Cther recalvabdes- third party
Other recavables -Inter - company
Provision for doubtful deht
Recaivable covered undar security

Thereof, putstanding for a period eaceeding six months.

B40,831 720,173
50,000 50,000

E99.833 78,174

42,343 42,707

25,608 29,367
(50,0000  [50,000)
§17,784  BO1,247

711,253 603,153

42,165 17,800

Trade and ather receivables were stated at their nominal value. Adequate provisions were

recorded for all identifiable risks,

Trade and other receivables were accrued in the ordinary course of business and no amount
was dug by the Directors [inchuding Managing Director), manager and other officers of the
company and any of them severaly or jaintly with any other person,

Advances, deposits and prepayments
Advance paid to suppliers and employees
Security and other deposits

Prepaid sxpense

These Include dues realizable/adjustable within one
year from the balance sheet date

31,804 23402
36,149 96,719
9,968 36,450

77,511 156,572

62,356 140421

Thase inclede aggregate amount due by, Executives, 4,396 5431

Managers, Officers and 54afis

The maximum aggregated amount due by Executives, 8,553 7,564

Managers, Officers and Staffs of the compamy at the end of any

ranth during the year

Advance recoverahle in cash 2.703 3551

Advance outstanding for a period excaeding six months 17,927 26,248

Cash and bank balances Note 3.7

Cash in hand S04 147

Cash at bank in currant accounts 41,916 {6,170}

Short term bank de posits {STD) 430,837 271,753

Fixed Deposits Receipts (FOR) 2085711 2,395,325
3,459,969 2,461,058

FOR includes an armount of Taka 24 677 thousand i held undes lien in favor of Customs

Authority.




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Motes to the statement of Financial Position - Equity and Lishilities

5 2.8 11 Share capltal
As per the disclosure requirements laid down in scheduba under the rale 12(2] of the
Securitbes and Exchange Rules 1987, the follewing are the part and parcel of shase capétal,

MELMfE} 111 Autharized share capital
The total authorized number of ordinary shares is 100 million shares with a face value of
Taka 10 per share (2011 Tk, 10 Per Share), The face value of sharas was changed to TE. 10
! fram Tk. 100 as per the decision taken on 7th Extra-Ordinary Genesal Meeting (EGM], held
an 27 November 2011, to comply with the Securities & Exchange Commission order no.

! SEC/CMRREDY 3009 193/109 dated 15 Septembar 2011,
| MELTI () 11.2  lssued, subscribed and pald-up capital

. 2012 2011

_ Number of shares 56,503,580 56,503,580

| Subscribed share capltal {Taka in thousand) 565,036 565,036

! #Az of December 31, 1A 2, the share capital amounts to Taka. 565,035 800 and i dividend E

: imto 56,503,580 ordinary shares of Tk 10 each. All issued shares are fully paid. T

| MSL79/a)wl 113 Position of share holding 4]

; ] Figures in Thousand Taka (]

| 2012 2011 2012 2011 <

: Forelgn Shareholders T

| Hedelberg Cement - Z

| il by o h 3 woen || omew | twrsse || 1i7ses z

- HC Asia Holding Gmbh : ] L

| PR 50.66% 50.66% 342,776 342778 5

. Bangladeshi Sharebholders L

. Other Shareholders (General 18.36% 19.94% 103,833 112,662 E

' pubslich ]

| Company Employees 0.38% 0.40% 2,144 2,261 Q

| Investment Corparation of 10.67% 10.75% 60,292 60,749 E
Bangladesh [ICE) E
Other financial mstitutions &.591% 8.25% 55,993 46,550 E

I

| 39,34% 39,34% 272362 132,262 %

| 100, 00K 100.00% 7

I by halding

| Holdings Number of holders

i 2012 2011

| Less than 5000 shares 12658 12,656

| 5001 to 50,000 shares 53 235

| 50,001 to 200,000 shares 57 B0

| 200,001 to 500,000 shares 7 B

| 500,001 to 10,000,000 shares 5 5

| Crver 10,000,000 shares 2 F)

I e it M ol

| 12,982 12,967

| M5 179 11.5 Option gn un-issued shares

There is no option an un-issued share capétal

R e 2012 | 7
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ag 577

A5 TFF

145 177

12

1zl

14

15

Capital reserne

in Thousand Taks
Share Amalgamation Tatal
premism rasarya

Balance as at 1 January 2012 153,500 413,157 BO5 65T

Balance as at 31 Decernber 2012 193,500 413,187 BOS 5T

The amalgamation reseras (s resulted from amalgamation transactions, It is not available for
deeidend distribution, &malgamation transaction was accounted for using 'pooling-of-
Interest' method. Under the ‘pooling-of-interest ' method any difference betwean the
acquisition consideration for and the share capital of the entitles are shown as a movement
i the reserves of the amalgamated entity,

Suppliers’ credit-blocked

Suppiers' credit-blocked Taka 2,565 thousand represents the valwe of mechanial spares
ete supplied by the contractor b/s Five's Cod Bebeock, France against French grant &
replacement of damages caused to the conveyar belt being constructed by them, The vakue
of supples at FF 499,578 was converted at ruling exchange rate as on 30 June 19848, BCIC
kad clairmed the amount and debentures were Eseed towards repayrent of the amaunt.
note 14.2 and 29

Ouasl equity loan
Figures in Thowsand Taka
The make-up: 1012 1011
Fixed assets revaleation surplus 104,122 104,122
Gavt, Equity contribution 20,000 30,000
124,132 124,137
Fora|gn currency devalyed {1,4E6) (1.486]
122,636 132,636

A the time aof transfer of 51% shares held by BOIC te TK Dil Refinery Limited during June
1253, the company Bssued 13.5% Debanture for Tk, 137,500 thousand to BEIC in repayment
af the following dues:

Supglears’ credit - pote-13 2,565
Cusas equity loan - 14.1 122,636
ADP interest-pocess provision 11699

137,900

The trust deed was registered on 24 June 1993 but the concerned properties have not been
miortgaged and charged have not been crested then a3 pes requinement of sections 115 of
Companies Act 1913. The minority share holders (40%) filed a case with sub-judge court,
Dhaka agaknst lsswe of debemtures, The judgment was In favour of minority share haolders,
which meands that the entire liabdity will not be payable to BOC. The Government appealed
ta high court and the judgment was again in favaur of minority share holders. The judgment
and order of the High Court Division was challenged by the Gowernment before Appellate
Division of the Supreme Court of and the Appedlate Dévision vide (s judgment and order
dated 100052007 allowed the appeal and set aside the judgment and order of the High
Court Division dated 07 12.1999. Subsagquently, the Government has filed Money Sult No.
32 of 3009 in the Court of loimt District judge, dth Court, Dhaks against the company
claiming Tk. 437,600,148 00 only including debenture interest.

Deferred Liabllity [Gratulty Payable] - Note 3.9

This represents gratuity payable to employees of the company and are payable as and when
they separate from the company. The company's podicy related to employees retirement
gratuity ls stated in note-3.9. The year end lRability was Tk 65,803 thousand [2011: 53,251
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IAS 12.81(ghi) 16  Deferred tax liability - 3.18 Figures in Thousand Taka
. 2012 Al
Opening balance 437 666 362912
| Prowision made durkng the year 102,960 74,754
- 580,525 437,666
M5 177 17 Trade and other payables - Note 3.10
- The make up:
' Trade payables 551 056 864,364
! Creditors for other finance note-17.1 355,684 208,124
Creditors for revenue expenses nota-17.2 G52, 181 572003
Interest payable 259,700 259,700

LB9E, 522 1,944 891
*Tk. 75,188 thousands provided against import and supplementary duties covered by

! bank guarantess.
171  Creditors for other finance-note 17
i Lecurity deposts 213,544 137,334
| VAT deduction at spurce 6,310 13,057
' Tax dediction at source E3 206 61571
Payable to employees P.F fund 1,844 (3,220}
Imter company payable 13,151 5163
Others 37,529 4.219
n 355,684 208,124
| 17.2  Creditors for revenue expenses note-17
I Revenus charges 412,766 308,397
| Employees remuneration 23,929 14,653
' Technical kriow-how fee-note 17.3 :E..SIE EEE
' 652,181 572,703

. 17.3  Technical know how fee s payable to HeldelbergCement Asla Pie, @ 3% of net sales of
| prior year in sccordance with the Technical know - how and Technological transfes
| agreement effective from 1 January 2001, Note- 17,2,
|

HEIDELBERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.

1AS 1.77 18 Short term loan
Inter company 28657 36 8384
9,657 35,884
I A5 1.78{d) 13 Provision for liabilities and charges includes provision for Workers' Profit Participation
! A5 37.54 (o) Fund {'\WPPF) of Taka 95,055 thousand (2011: Taka 58,285 thousand). This represents
| 5% of net profit before charging the contribution provided as per Act,
| Figures in Thousand Taka
: M5 177 20 Unclaimed dividand 2012 i
: Opening balance 62,621 57,310
' Add; Addition during the year (net of tax) 227436 216,460
Less: Paid during the year (221,825} [211,149)
Balance as at 31 Decambar BH,232 52,671
IAS 3734 1  Contingent assets

In accordance with the resolution passed by the BCIC Board of Directors in thair
meating held on 8.9.1986, land praperty owned by the Company measuring 48,09
decimial was transferred to BOIC at a lump sum price of Tk 10,000 thousand, BCIC did
net make any payment . The Company ralsed claim for Tk.35,500 thousand from BCIC
includsng Tk. 25,500 thousand as interest
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145 37.85 22 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Il  Contingent labllites:
Guarantees issved by the Company™s banker with 16,958 16,558
100% rmargin form of FOR for import duty and
supplementary duty
Guarantees [sswed by the Company's banker for 15,274 15,274
security depodits and others

i} Financlad commbitmemnts:
Confirmed rrevocable letters of credit [limit: Tk 504,031 F404ATE
1,250,000 thousand 2011: Tk 1,405,000 thousand)

i} Capital expenditure authorized but not contracted 44 200 425,619
far

iw] Capital sxpenditure authorized and committed for 71,332 105,330

651,795 1,313,707

n‘ 1A% 15, 14 Nates to the statement of comprehensive income
=
el
- 13 Sales - Note 3.12, 24.2 Flgures In Thousand Taka
o 2012 2011
(=] Domestics salas 10,811,392 BA35,172
3 Export sales 73,762 E1,084
(L] s 1.99 10,885,154 8,516,206
= A5 1103 !} Codt of goods sold
E Openéng stack - raw matenals 557,184 518,827
= Raw materials purchased T B0, 08 6,385,574
E Closing stock - raw materials {599,835} (557,184}
! Raw materials consumgtion, note-24.1 7,763,433 6,347,217
L Manufacturing labour and overhead, note-24.4 1,037,585 Bad,B53
E Cost of production 8,801,017 7,192,071
] Opening finished goods BROIG 51,1086
E Cloging finished goods E‘J‘,ﬁ Eg:nﬂt
L
=
T 145 1.104 241  Raw materials consumed
Oipening stock:
Oinker 415,837 366,724
Gypsum 22915 19,299
Irom stag 58,738 B,
Lirnestone & Fly ash 27273 33,691
Packing materials 32440 17341
Purchase: 557,184 518827
Clinker 5,585,794 4,825,375
Gypsum 118231 148,642
925,979 584,831
545477 415,189
516,601 407,537

706,084 6,385,574
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Closing stock:
Chinker (359,326) {£15,837)
Gypsum [62,621) (22,915)
Iron slag {109,142) (58, 738)
Limestone & Fiy ash [34,581) [27,273)
Packing materials (34,168} (32,420}
(559, E35) (557, 184)
Raw materials consumed 7,763,433 B, 347,217
4.2 Particulars in respect of opening stock, sales and closing stocks of Anlshed goods
Opening stock Clasing stock Saleynet
Oiy-M.T Taka Oty -M.T Taka Qiy-M.T Taka
Year 2013 ] BB, 06 1z B7.044 Tiagmn _ IDEEs 154
versoit I ELEE THEC 0 EEEE W0 EEEE o
ol
r
£4.3  Analysis of materials consumption W
31 Dec. 20012 31 Dec, 2011 o
Qry-M.T Taka Orty-M.T Taka 5
Baw materials - Year 2012 ]
Clinkar 551 5642307 913 4,780, 6 Z
Gy psLm 53 188,535 13 145,025
Iran slag J8E B75.576 210 607 BES 5
Limestone & Fy ash 145 542,164 154 431,607 'E
Packing materials - 000 Pcs 18,4495 514,855 5078 352,458 T
7,763,433 6,347,217 =
Ll
Figures in Thousand Taka E
A5 1.9 244  Manufacturing, |abour amd owerhead i3 2011 E
B0
Personnel Cost: El.
Salaries, wages and bonus 53,033 54,511 =)
‘Wedfare and other benefits 55323 47,631 ]
108,356 102,202 45
Poswer and fuel costs 480,353 30] 533
Depraciation expensa note-4,1 174, 484 165,203
Stores and spares consumed TH 084 55,376
Cost of conswmables 76,174 45,711
Repairs and maintenance 50,714 31,116
Insurance G616 8,515
Postage, telephone and telex 1587 1,345
Traveling and conveyanoea 13,570 9,451
Rent, rates and tanes 19,590 13,661
Fuel and gas 1,850 1,207
Entertainment 2673 2,547
Seourity guard 11,655 9,205
Cither administrative expanses 8,880 6478
1,037,585
Ag1.9¥ 5 iOthar cparating income
Berth hire charge 11,081

Serap sales and sundry recoveries 17,630
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145 1.99

145 1.102

451,99

26 Warehousing, distribution and selling expenses

Personnel Cost:
Welfare and benefits

Depreciation expense note-4.1
Freight, Loading, Unloading and others
Adwertisemant

Traveling and conveyance
Vehicle running expense

Rent, rates and taxes

Postage, telephone and telex
Printing and stationary

Repairs and maintenance
Entertainment

Books, magazine & newspaper
Other administrative expenses

Administrative axpenses

Personnel Cost:
Salaries, wages and bonus
Welfare and benefits

Depreciation expense note-4.1
Amortization of intangible assets, note-&
Rent, rates and taxes

Traveling and conveyance
Postage, telephone and telax
Annual General Meeting expensas
Technical know-how fee-note-17.3
Legal and professional charges
Entertainment

Repairs and maintenance

Printing and stationary

Bank charges

Electronic Data Processing expense
Audit fea

Advertisement

Training expensa

Electricity

Vehicle running expense
Newspaper & periodicals

Security guard

C5R/Subscription on others

Other administrative expenses

Mon-operating income/f{loss)
Gainf{Loss) on sake of fived assets

Figures in Thousand Taka

2012 2011
17,446 11,920
17,129 13,278
34,574 25,197
34,897 33,041
36,348 23,240
60,904 55,208

6,107 5,519

230 255
2,418 152
937 880

3 450

252 110
152 74

8 13

- 350
176,831 144,527
17,587 13,867
24,042 16,580
41,629 30,046
23,265 22,027
558 1,272
16,663 15,129

5,670 2,618

1,562 1,627

1,034 1,525

255,486 249,653

8,661 5,592

1,324 1,673

4,282 3,936

937 1,426
1,195 1,040
3,499 2,369

550 500

792 218
4,602 1,380

870 746

632 442

29 48

104 a2
2,594 2,750
2,425 2,001

378,462 348,129
8 670
8 670




IAS 1.55

145 12.54

IAS 33.70

IAS F.18{a)

IAS 7. 1dfe)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 Financlal Incomef|{Expensas)

i1

Interest income on bank deposits 348,512 297,681
Bank guarantes & other charges {3.855) (1,454}
344,657 296,226
Met exchange galn/[loss) {1349) 1,893
__344528 298,120
Taxes on Income

The corporate tax rate s 27.5% for the year 2012 (2011 ¥7.5%) as a "Publichy
Treded Campany'”. Current year tax provision has been accounted for at Tk,

provided for pre-tax,
Earnings Per Share [Basic Earnings Per Share-|AS 33.10)

Profit after tax for the year 1,291 094 749,661
Weighted average number of shares autstanding at the 56,504 56,504
end af the year

Earnings Per Share 22,85 13.27

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is made in accordance with 15 33
{Earnings Per Share), dividing the profit for the year by weighted average number
of the sharas issued,

Basic Earnings

This represents earnings for the year attributable

As there was no preference dividend, minority Interest or extra ordinany [tems,
the net prafit after tax for the year has been conslderad as fully attributable to
the ardinary sharehalders,

Welghted average nurmber of shares outstanding at the end of the year:
This represents the nurmber of ardinary shares outstanding at the year baginning
af the year plus the number of ardinary shares lssued during the year,

Motes to the Statement of Cash Flows

Er ]

33

The cash flow staterment shows the company’s cash and cash equivalents changed
during the year through inflows and outflows. Cash fiows statemant has baan
prepared as per IAS -7 using the Direct Method,

Met cash inflow from operating activities arrived after adjusting operating expenses
pald, Interest and texes pakd during the year.

Met cash used in investing activities includes cash autflow for purchase of property,
plant and equipment after adjusting sale proceads.

Met cash inflow financing activites mainly resulted from repayment of kong term
boan as well a5 recaived from short term loan,

Cash recehsed from customers
Grods cash received from customers arfived at after adjusting accounts recevables
wilth rewvenue for the year.

Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to various suppliers arrived at after adjusting cost of raw materials and
consumption cost of spares parts consurned with eredibors for trade supplies,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IAS 735

JAS 7.16(a)

145 7.16(h)

M5 731

IAS T17d]

IA% 1.57

36

ar

L

41

Cash paid for operating expenses
Cash paid for operating expenses arrived at after adjusting non-cash items and
creditors for revenue expenses.

Income Tax Pakd

During the yaar the company paid Taka 412,532 thowsand (2011; 435,581 thowsand)
as advance income bax.

Purchase of fixed assets
Investrment relate to outflow of cash and cash eguivalents for fixed assets,
Sale of fined assets

Figures in Thousand Taka

_1z _an
Transport & vehlcles 50 714
50 714

Dividend paid

In 2012, the company paid dividends of Taka 221,825 thousand (2011:Taka 211,149
thousand] fram unpaid dividend.

Short term loan repayment/received
The item represents net incresse of short term loan from Meghna Energy Lirmibed
amounting to Taka 22,773 thousand,

Bank facilities
The company has got the following loan facilities from Standard Chartered and Cliibank, N.A.

Standard Chartered
Shart terrm loan facilithas 200,000
Letter of credit 1,250,000
Bank Guarantee opened ended 55,008
1,535,008
Sacurities:
These are secured by:

a) Demand promissory note for Tk, 1,535 008,000

b} Letter of continuation for Tk, 1,535 008,000

c) Letter of Comfort from HeidelbergCement AG covering total facilities of Standand
Chartered Bank,

Expenditure incurred on employees
w2 mi
Number of Kumber of
_Employees = Employees
Salaries, wages and benefits (Mote 24.4, 26 & 27)
Employmant throwgh out the year in receipt of
remuneration aggregating Th.36,000 or more per 167 153
. 267 253
= =

Employes remunerationncludes all bypes of benefits paid and provided both in cash and
kind other than the re-imbursement of expenses incurred for the Comparny's business,




MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

185 1.97 43 Expanditure in equivalent foreign currency
Figures in Thousand Taka
2012 2011
Technical Enow - how fee payable 255 486 245,653
Fareign travel for Company's business purpose 4,960 1,686
260,046 252,339
1AS 1.97 43 Remuneration of Directors, Managers & Officers
43.1 Managerial Remuneration -Managers & Officers
Salary & bonus 57517 52,052
Rent 27,608 24,447
Retirement benefits 7843 6,507
Pravident fund 4 866 4,423
Medical 5,647 5S.225
ather 4211 3.599
107,793 96,656
43.2 Pald to Directors
Fag 1B 14
TADA 128 145
116 163
m—
LAS 2417 44 Related party transactions
Durirg the year the comparry carried owt a rumber of transactions with refated parties in the narmal
courses of business and “on an ams length basis®. The name af the related partses, the nature of the
transactians and thair balanoe 31 year end have been sl out beloe:
SL | Hame of the related parties Mature of Relationship Receivable
transactions {payable) at
e e i R R A T Ayt
1 HeldelbargCemant Asla Foe, Lid Techmkal sardce Hesde|bergComant &G Group 255,485)
Entity
) Weghna Enangy Limited Ensargy supplier Heddalbarglement AG Group (59,657}
Ertity
3 Heigelberg Asia Holdings GmbH Coarparate allairs Hesde|berglement G Group 308
Entity
4 HTC Techrical sarvips Hedde|berglement &G Group 15838
En'lﬂ_;lr
5 HDLCE Technical sendce Heidelberglerment AG Group B als
Enitity
B Indocement Technical service Heidelberglement AG Group (14,533}
Erity
7 | HE Trading Maita Ltd. Raw matorial supphers HeidelbergComent AG Group {152, 145)
Entity
45  Capacity and Production
45,1 wn Manulsciune
Imstaled capacity Actual prosluction
Singhe shift Multiple shifts 43 applicable
2012 011
Ling of business
Gray cement-Eanchpur 1,075,000 841977 TH5 329
Gray cement-Chittagong 1,308,600 645,536 534 800
2,378,000 1487513 1320129
45.2 licensed capacity is no more applicable and the regulatory authority does not exercse any dinect,

contred over the proturement, production or sakae.

HEIDELEERGCEMENT BANGLADESH LTD.
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Aafi0id 48  Events after the balance sheet date
s 10115

ME101F 461  Proposed Dividend

; During the year the Board of Directors In lts mesting held of 11 April, 7013 proposed 50 % cash dividend
[2001; 45% cashh.

The propeded dividend is pat recogniced as a liability at the balance sheet date in accordance with IAS
10 "Events after the Balance Sheet Date”

sheet date but before the finarcial statements are authaorized for isswe, be disclosed either an the face
of balance sheat a5 a separate compenent of agquity or in the notes ta the financlal statemants,
Accardingly the company i§ disdosing its proposed dividend in nobés to the sccouwnts.

|
:
| 185 1 'Presentation of Firancial Statements’ alse requine that dividend propased after the balance
I
|

; The prowision of the Companles Act, 1994, require that dividend stated to be in respect of period
' covered by the financial statements and that are propeded of declared after the balance sheet date

Company Secretary Director Managing Dérector

a but before approval of the financial statements showld be either adjusted of disclosed. Considaring
| ] the requiresments af |AS snd Companies Aet, 1994 dividend propoded have besn disclased in the
I T financial statemnents and nat shown as liability.

¥y
| A MS10.17 47 Approval of the Financlal Statements
| g These financial statements were autharlzed for ssue In accordance with the resolution of the
| T company’s board of directar's on 11 Aprl, 2013
| F 4
| g 48 General
|
i E 481 Previous year's phrases and figures Rave been rearranged, wherever necessany to conform i the
| E presentation of financal statements far the year under rewiew,

res appearing in statemsents have N to the nearest aka.

ﬂ 482 Figu rl these financial have been ded-off to the Thousand Taka
| o
i
I E |' ;
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(e ﬂ ==Y o A -
i E Mohammad Mostafieur Rahman Jashim Uddin Chawdhury FCA Marceling Ugarte
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